



We Roar Loud. We Lead Proud.



STUDENT'S RIGHTS, RESPONSIBILITIES, AND CODE OF CONDUCT

DPSCD does not discriminate on the basis ofrace, color, national origin, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, disability, age, religion, height, weight, citizenship, marital or family status, Military status, ancestry, genetic information, or any other legal protected category, inits educational programs and activities, including employment and admissions. Questions? Concerns? Contact the Civil Rights Coordinator at (313) 240-4377 or dpscd.compliance@detroitkl2.org or 3011 W Grand Blvd. 14th floor, Detroit, MI 48202.

Board Members

Bishop Corletta J. Vaughn, Ph.D. President

LaTrice McClendon Vice President

Dr. Ida Carol Simmons-Short Secretary

> Iris Taylor, Ph.D. Treasurer

Sherry Gay-Dagnogo Member

Monique Bryant Member

Member

Dr. Nikolai P. Vitti Superintendent

Table of Contents

Board Members	3
Language Assistance Services and Notice of Non-Discrimination	6
Blueprint 2027	8
Letter from the Board of Education and Superintendent	9
Educate and Empower Every Student in Every Community Everyday	10
Multi-Tiered System of Supports	9
Expect Respect	10
DPSCD Public Safety Department Role in Schools	12
Roles, Rights, Responsibilities and Expectations	13
Attendance Policy	18
Chronic Absenteeism.	21
Dress Code	23
Discipline of Students with Disabilities	24
Students Suspected of Having a Disability	26
Early Elementary Students with Suspected Disabilities	26
Title IX Sexual Harassment	27
Technology Use	28
Bullying Policy	29
Positive Behavioral Interventions and Supports (PBIS)	30
Interventions, Supports, and Disciplinary Actions	30
Implementation of Interventions, Supports, and Disciplinary Action	32
Alternative Disciplinary Options	33
Administrative Transfer	34
A Infractions	35
Disciplinary Actions Per Occurrence for A Infractions	36
B Infractions	37
Disciplinary Actions Per Occurrence for B Infractions	39
C Infractions	42
Disciplinary Actions Per Occurrence for C Infraction	44
D Infractions	47
Disciplinary Actions per Occurrence for D Infractions	50
Due Process Rights	52
School Level Conferences, Hearings and Expulsion Review	53

Permanent Expulsion.	54
Reinstatement After Permanent Expulsion	54
Readmission Guidelines and Hearings	55
Appeals	56
Student Grievance	57
Additional Resources for Students and Families	58
De-Escalation - Seclusion and Restraint	58
Appendix A – Glossary of Terms	59
Appendix B - Due Process Rights of Students and Parents in Disciplinary Cases	61
Appendix C – Interrogations and Searches	62
Appendix D – Index of Reportable Incidents	64
Appendix E – Title IX Definitions	

Language Assistance Services and Notice of Non-Discrimination

Detroit Public Schools Community District provides language assistance (oral interpretation and written translation) services to parents and guardians with limited English proficiency. The District accepts a parent's or guardian's assertion that language assistance is needed in speaking, reading or writing English without requiring additional corroboration. For free help, please contact your child's school or the District's Translations Coordinator at (313) 870-3776 or (313) 212-4312.

DPSCD does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, disability, age, religion, height, weight, citizenship, marital or family status, ancestry, genetic information, or any other legally protected category, in its educational programs and activities, including employment and admissions Questions? Concerns? Contact the Civil Rights Coordinator at (313)240-4377 or detroitk12.org or 301 West Grand Boulevard, 14th Floor, Detroit MI 48202. We offer assistance for the Deaf and Hard of Hearing to access DPSCD programs. Call or Text: 313-212-4312 Email: translation.request@detroitk12.org.

Servicios de asistencia lingüística y aviso de no discriminación

El Distrito Comunitario de las Escuelas Públicas de Detroit proporciona servicios de asistencia lingüística (interpretación oral y traducción escrita) para padres, madres y tutores con dominio limitado del inglés. El Distrito acepta la declaración de un padre, madre o tutor de que necesita asistencia lingüística para hablar, leer o escribir en inglés sin corroboración adicional necesaria. Para obtener ayuda gratuita, póngase en contacto con la escuela de su hijo/a o con el coordinador de traducciones del distrito al (313) 870-3776 o al (313) 212-4312.

El DPSCD no discrimina por motivos de raza, color, nacionalidad, sexo, orientación sexual, identidad de género, discapacidad, edad, religión, altura, peso, ciudadanía, estado civil o familiar, ascendencia, información genética o cualquier otra categoría legalmente protegida, en sus programas y actividades educativas, incluidos el empleo y las admisiones. ¿Preguntas? ¿Preocupaciones? Contacte al Coordinador de Derechos Civiles al (313) 240-4377 o dpscd.compliance@detroitk12.org o 301 West Grand Boulevard, Piso 14, Detroit MI 48202.

Ofrecemos asistencia para personas sordas o hipoacúsicas para acceder a los programas del DPSCD. Llame o envíe un mensaje de texto al 313-212-4312 Envíe un correo electrónico a: translation.request@detroitk12.org.

ভাষা সহায়তা েসবা এবং অ-ৈবষেময় িব্যাি

েড ্রান্তে পাবিলক ্রুলস কিমটিনিট িডিগ্রা সীিমত ইংেরিজ দগ্রতার বাবা-মা এবং অিভভাবকেদর ভাষা সহায়তা (েমীিখক েদাভাষী ও িলিখত অনুবাদ) পিরেষবা সরবরাহ কের। িডিগ্রা অিতিরা ৈকিফয়ত ছাড়াই েকােনা মা-বাবা বা অিভভাবেকর িববৃিত গ্রহণ কের েয ইংেরিজেত কথা বলা, পড়া বা েলখার েগ্রত্থে ভাষা সহায়তা ্রত্থেয়াজন। িবনামূলেয্ সাহােযয় জন্য্, অনুগ্রহ কের আপনার সগ্রােনের গ্রুল বা িডিগ্রত্থের অনুবাদ সমন্ত্রয়কারীর সাতেথ (313) 870-3776 অথবা (313) 212-4312 ন্রত্থের েযাগােযাগ করুন।

DPSCD িনেয়াগ ও ভিতর্সহ এর িশ্ত্রা কমর্সূচি ও কাষর্ত্তকের েত্রতে গোত্র, বণ,র্ জািতগত পিরচয়, িলত্র, েযৌন অিভমুখীতা, িলত্র পিরচয়, ত্রতিবিল্তা, বয়স, ধম,র্ উত্ততা, ওজন, নাগিরকত্ত,

ৈববািহক বা পািরবািরক অব্রান, সামিরক অব্যান, পূবর্পুরুষ, েজেনিটক তথয্, অথবা আইনগতভাবে সুরিগ্রত অনয্ েকােনা েগ্রিণিবভােগর িভিৎতেত েকানরপ ৈবষময্ কের না। েকােনা গ্রা আেছ্? েকােনা উেগ্রগ আেছ্? নাগিরক অিধকার সমন্ত্রয়েকর সােথ (313) 240-4377 ন্যাের অথবা dpscd.compliance@detroitk12.org ইেমইল িঠকানায় অথবা 3011 West Grand Boulevard, 14th Floor, Detroit MI 48202 িঠকানায় েযাগাে যােগ করুন।

আমরা DPSCD কমর্সূতিতে অয্াে্রেেসর জন্য বিধর ও রবেণ সমস্যা থাকা ব্যতিরেদের সহায়তা কির। কল বা েটরেট করুন: 313-212-4312 ইেমইল: translation.request@detroitk12.org.

Cov Kev Pab Cuam Muaj Kev Pab Hais Lus thiab Ntawy Ceeb Toom Tsis Pub Muaj Kev Ntxub Ntxaug

Lub Tsev Kawm Ntawv Detroit Rau Niam Txiv Pej Xeem Hauv Cheeb Tsam Zej Zos tau muab kev pab cuam fab kev pab txhais lus (txhais lus thiab txhais ntaub ntawv) rau tsoom niam thiab txiv thiab cov neeg pab saib xyuas uas hais lus Askiv tsis tau zoo. Cheeb tsam tsev kawm ntawv lees txais tau niam thiab txiv los sis tus neeg pab saib xyuas qhov kev thov kom pab txhais lus rau kev hais, kev nyeem, los sis kev sau lus Askiv yam tsis tau thov txuas mus ntxiv. Txhawm rau nrhiav kev pab pub dawb, thov tiv tauj rau koj tus menyuam lub tsev kawm ntawv los sis Cheeb Tsam Tsev Kawm Ntawv Tus Neeg Khiav Hauj Lwm Txuas Lus Fab Kev Txhais Ntaub Ntawv tau ntawm (313) 870-3776 los sis (313) 212- 4312.

DPSCD tsis muaj kev ntxub ntxaug rau kev cais haiv neeg, cev nqaij daim tawv, teb chaws yug, poj niam txiv neej, kev nyiam poj niam los sis txiv neej, kev txheeb qhia tias yog poj niam los sis txiv neej, kev xiam oob qhab, hnub nyoog, kev ntseeg, kev siab, kev rog, kev yog pej xeem, txheej xwm kev sib yuav thiab tsev neeg, poj koob yawm txwv, kev yeej noob, los sis lwm yam uas tau txais kev tiv thaiv los ntawm kev cai lij choj, nyob rau hauv nws cov khoos kas thiab cov dej num pab kev kawm ntawv, suav nrog rau kev ntiav ua hauj lwm thiab kev thov nkag mus kawm Puas Muaj Lus Nug Dab Tsi? Puas muaj kev txhawj xeeb dab tsi? Tiv tauj rau Tus Kws Lis Hauj Lwm Fab Kev Saib Xyuas Cai Rau Pej Xeem tau ntawm (313) 240-4377 los sis dpscd.compliance@detroitk12.org los sis chaw nyob 301 West Grand Boulevard, 14th Floor, Detroit MI 48202.

Peb muab kev pab rau Cov Neeg Dig Muag thiab Hnov Lus Tsis Zoo kom nkag tau rau DPSCD cov khoos kas muab kev pab. Hu los sis Sau Ntawv Mus Rau: 313-212-4312 Email: translation.request@detroitk12.org.

Services d'assistance linguistique et avis de non-discrimination

Le District Communautaire des Écoles Publiques de Détroit offre des services d'assistance linguistique (interprétation et traduction) aux parents et tuteurs dont les compétences en anglais sont limitées. Lorsqu'un parent ou un tuteur affirme qu'il a besoin d'une assistance linguistique pour parler, lire ou écrire l'anglais, le district admet ce fait sans exiger d'autres preuves. Pour bénéficier d'une assistance gratuite, veuillez contacter l'école de votre enfant ou le coordinateur des traductions du district au (313) 870-3776 ou (313) 212-4312.

DPSCD ne fait aucune discrimination sur base de la race, de la couleur, de l'origine nationale, du sexe, de l'orientation sexuelle, de l'identité de genre, du handicap, de l'âge, de la religion, de la taille, du poids, de la citoyenneté, du statut matrimonial ou familial, de l'ascendance, des informations génétiques ou de toute autre catégorie d'information légalement protégée, dans ses programmes et activités éducatifs, y compris l'emploi ainsi que les admissions. Des questions? Des préoccupations? Contactez le coordinateur des droits civils au (313) 240-4377 ou écrivez-lui aux adresses suivantes dpscd.compliance@detroitk12.org ou 301 West Grand Boulevard, 14th Floor, Detroit MI 48202.

Nous offrons une assistance aux personnes sourdes et souffrantes de déficience auditive pour accéder aux programmes du DPSCD. Appelez ou envoyez un SMS au 313-212-431. Courriel : translation.request@detroitk12.org.

د ژبی په برخه کی د مرستندویه خدماتو او د غیر توپیری چنند په اړه خبرتیا

د ډيټرويټ د دولتي ښوونځيو اړوند تعليمي حوزه د هغو والدينو او سرپرستانو لپاره چي د انګليسي ژبي محدود مهارت لري د ژبي په برخه کي د (شفاهي او تحريري

ژباړې) مرستندویه خدمات وړاندې کوې. یاده تعلیمي حوزه پرته له دې چې د اضافي تایید غوښتنه وکړې، د والدینو دا ادعا مني چې د انګلیسي ژبې په ویلو، لوستلو یا

ليکلو کې مرستي ته اړتيا لري. 🛚 د وړيا مرستي لپاره، مهرباني وکړئ د خپل ماشوم له ښوونځي يا د اړونده تعليمي حوزې د ژباړې له همغږي کوونکي سره په 3776

-870 (313) يا 4312-212 (313) شمېرو اړيکه ونيسئ.

DPSCD د دندې او نومليکنې د پوښتنو په ګټون د نژاد، رنګ، مليت، جنسي، جنسي تمايل، جنسيتي هويت، معلوليت، عمر، دين، قد، وزن، تابعيت، مدني حالت، نظامي حيثيت، نسب، ارثي معلوماتو، او يا د قانون له مخې د خونديتوب لاندى د نورو ډلو ير بنسټ، په خپلو ښوونيزو برنامو او فعاليتونو كې هيڅ ډول توپيري چاند نه

کوي؛ که په دې اړه کومي اندېښني لرئ؛ نو د مدني حقوقو د همغږۍ له دفتر سره په 4377-240 (313) شمېره اړیکي ونیسی یا ورسره د

dpscd.compliance@detroitk12.org برېښناليک له لاري وصل شئ يا هم 48202 301 West Grand Boulevard, 14th Floor, Detroit MI بتي نام م مراجعه وکړي.

موړ د DPSCD برنامو ته د لاسرسي لپاره د کڼو او په هغه کسانو ته چې په اورېدلو کې سٽونزه لري مرستندويه خدمات وړاندې کوو. په دې اړه دغه شمېرې ته زنګ ووهئ يا ورته لنډ ليکلي پيغام ولېړئ: 212-4312 translation.request@detroitk12.org.

ساحه برای

خدمات مساعدت لسانى و اطلاعیه عدم تبعیض

ساحه تحصیلی مکاتب عامه دیترویت خدمات مساعدت لسانی (ترجمه شفاهی و کتبی) به والدین و سرپرستان دارای مهارت محدود لسان انگلیسی ارایه می دهد. اظهار ولی یا سرپرست مبنی بر ضرورت مساعدت لسانی در زمینه صحبت کردن، خواندن یا نوشتن به انگلیسی را بدون ضرورت به تأییدیه اضافی می پذیرد.

دریافت رهنمود رایگان، لطفأ با مکتب فرزند خود یا هماهنگ کننده ترجمه های ساحه به شماره تلیفون ۳۷۷۴-۸۷۸ (۳۱۳) یا ۴۳۱۲-۲۱۲ (۳۱۳) به تماس شوید.

DPSCD در برنامه ها و فعالیت های آموزشی خود شامل استخدام و پذیرش بر مبنای نژاد، رنگ، ملیت، جنسیت، گرایش جنسی، هویت جنسی، مطولیت، سن، مذهب، قد، وزن، شهروندی، وضعیت تأهل یا خاتواده، تبار، معلومات ژنتیکی یا هر نوع معلومات حفاظت شده قانونی دیگر تبعیض قاتل نمی شود. سوال دارید؟ تشویش دارید؟ با مسئول هماهنگی حقوق شهروندی به شماره 4377-430(313) یا ایمیل dpscd.compliance@detroitk12.org یا آدرس پستی میشبگان، دیترویت، گراند بلوار غربی 301، طبقه چهاردهم، کد پستی 48202 به تماس شوید.

ما به ناشنوایان و کم شنوایان کمک میکنیم تا به برنامه های DPSCD دسترسی پیدا کنند. شماره تلیفون یا ارسال پیام: ۴۳۱۲-۲۱۲ آدرس ایمیل:

.translation.request@detroitk12.org

خدمات المساعدة اللغوية وإخطار بعدم التمييز

تقدّم المنطقة التعليمية لمدارس ديترويت المجتمعية العامة خدمات المساعدة اللغوية (الترجمة الفررية والترجمة التحريرية) لأولياء الأمور والأوصياء من ذوى الكفاءة

المحدودة في اللغة الإنكليزية. تقبل المنطقة التعليمية بتأكيد ولي الأمر أو الوصمي بأن ثمة حاجة إلى المساعدة اللغوية في التحدث أو القراءة أو الكتابة في اللغة الإنكليزية

من دون الحاجة إلى إثبات إضافي. للحصول على المساعدة المجانية، الرجاء التواصل مع مدرسة طفلك أو منسق الترجمة في المنطقة التعليمية على الرقم 3776-870 (313) أو 212-4312 (313).

لا تمارس المنطقة التعليمية لمدارس ديترويت المجتمعية العامة (DPSCD) أي تمييز على أساس العرق، اللون، الأصل القومي، الجنس، التوجه الجنسي، الهوية الجنسية، الإعاقة، العمر، الدين، الطول، الوزن، المواطنة، الحالة الإجتماعية أو الأسرية، النسب، المعلومات الجينية، أو غيرها من الغنات المحمية بموجب القانون، في برامجها

وأنشطتها التعليمية، بما في ذلك التوظيف والقبول. هل لديك أسئلة؟ أو مخاوف؟ إتصل بمنسق الحقوق المدنية على الرقم 4377-240-(313) أو على الرابط:

dpscd.compliance@detroitk12.org أو العنوان التالي: .301 West Grand Boulevard, 14th Floor, Detroit MI 48202 أو العنوان التالي:

نقدم المساعدة للصمّ وضعاف السمع للوصول إلى برامج المنطقة التعليمية لمدارس ديترويت المجتمعية العامة (DPSCD). اتصل أو أرسل رسالة نصية على الرقم: 313-212-4312 أو على البريد الإلكتروني: translation.request@detroitk12.org.

11/28/2022

MISSION

We educate and empower every student, in every community, every day, to build a stronger Detroit.

VISION

All students will have the knowledge, skills and confidence necessary to thrive in our city, our nation, our world.

CORE VALUES

Students First

Make decisions that are in the best interest of students. Use every resource strategically so that we can meet students individual needs.

Excellence

Be relentless in your pursuit of greatness. Be bold and innovate. Learn from your mistakes. Hold yourself and others to high standards.

Integrity
Do the right thing, even when no one is looking. Be honest. Be trustworthy. Be accountable.

Equity

Diversity is an asset that makes us stronger. Advocate for the needs of others. Ensure that all members of our community have access to the tools and resources they need to be successful.

Service

Listen. Empathize. Respond. Own problems and help to solve them.

Tenacity

Embrace hard work and persevere in the face of challenges. Follow through on your commitments and strive to do your best, no matter what.

Students Rise. We All Rise.



BLUEPRINT 2027



Goal 1: Improve Attendance

- **Access to Physical and Mental** Healthcare
- **Resources for Families**
- **Connected Community**
- **Expectations and Outreach**



Goal 2: Push to Higher Levels of Proficiency

- **Leadership Development**
- Primary Instruction Anti-Racist Pedagogy
- Diverse Learner Support Learning Progressions for Required Staff Competencies



Goal 3: Graduate Future-Ready Students

- Social Emotional Learning New Diploma Paths and High
- School Day Success Rates on College and
- Career Ready Courses Tailored Data and Information



Goal 4: Assure Sustainability and Continued Progress

- Equitable Funding
 Balanced Budget
 Fully Staffed and Engaged Teams
 Professional Culture
 Clear Succession Management
 21st Century Facilities

Letter from the Board of Education and Superintendent

Detroit Public Schools is committed to supporting every student feeling loved, challenged and prepared for college and career by fostering a safe, supportive learning environment that emphasizes restorative practices, tiered support systems, standardized corrective intervention strategies, and responsive wrap-around services. We believe that through proactive equitable support, our students can meet high expectations, both academically and socially.

Our school environments should be spaces that are conducive to positive student and adult interactions and academic achievement, therefore, there is strong emphasis on teaching our students strategies that promote proactive communication skills, allowing them to engage in advocacy and restorative dialogue. Additionally, students must be equipped to problem solve and navigate conflict in a respectful and peaceful manner, so they can personally contribute to the creation of classrooms that promote and sustain high quality teaching and learning.

Families, students, schools, staff, and the District must partner together to create a positive school culture as outlined in The Student's Rights, Responsibilities and Code of Conduct (The Code). The Code also outlines the progressive disciplinary consequences that accompany each infraction, including removal from the school orin very limited instances--expulsion from the District. Therefore, we encourage everyone to review the entire document carefully, and to have additional conversations about the importance of contributing to a safe and positive learning environment by abiding by the expectations outlined. It is also important that all participants in our District community understand the defined consequences that must be implemented when violations of the Code of Conduct occur.

After reviewing and discussing the documents with your student, please sign the "PARENT AND STUDENT STATEMENT OF UNDERSTANDING, RECEIPT AND REVIEW OF STUDENTS' RIGHTS, RESPONSIBILITIES, AND CODE OF CONDUCT" and return it to your child's school. If you have questions that you would like answered before signing, please reach out to the principal or school staff at your student's school. This is a great way to begin to build the important line of communication between you and your student's school. Please keep a copy for your records once signed.

Thank you for working with us to create safe, positive learning environments at every school in the Detroit Public Schools Community District.

Dr. Nikolai P. Vitti Superintendent Detroit Public Schools Community District

Board of Education
Bishop Corletta J. Vaughn, Ph.D., President
LaTrice McClendon, Vice President
Dr. Ida Carol Simmons-Short, Secretary
Dr. Iris Taylor, Treasurer
Sherry Gay-Dagnogo, Member
______, Member
Monique Bryant, Member

Educate and Empower Every Student in Every Community Everyday

The Detroit Public Schools Community District's 2025-2026 Student Code of Conduct was written in accordance with federal and state law, policies of the Detroit Board of Education, Superintendent administrative guidelines, as well as applicable agency guidance. The main goal of this document is to make sure all students in DPSCD can learn in a safe and helpful place. The school wants to support your learning and make sure you do well in your studies. They want to create an environment where you feel like you belong and where your feelings and well-being are important.

To do this, the school has some clear expectations for how students should behave, how adults should behave and how we hold ourselves and each other accountable to these expectations. The District wants to prevent problems before they happen, and if there are any issues, they want to handle them in a way that helps you learn from them, rather than just getting punished. DPSCD believes in helping all students be ready for jobs, college, and being part of the community. They want you to have the knowledge, skills, and confidence to succeed not only in Detroit but also in our country and the whole world!

The Student Code of Conduct makes sure that educators deal with discipline to learn and grow, not just to be punished. They also want you to feel responsible for your learning environment, so you can take charge and make your school a better place for everyone. These rules are here to make your school experience awesome and help you become successful students and responsible members of the community! Let's have a fantastic school year together!

The Code of Conduct has different ways to handle behavior when students make mistakes. Instead of just punishing, it tries to teach you the right way to behave and respond in different situations and provides support as students and staff work through the process. The response to your behavior will match the seriousness of the issue. The school wants to make sure you have good relationships with others and learn responsibility. They also want to give you support and help if you need it. They don't like to use suspensions or expulsions as punishment and will only do it as a last resort when nothing else works or if the incident has placed great harm on another member of the school community. If a suspension must happen, the school will try to bring you back to the classroom quickly. They believe in "restorative practices," which means helping you understand how your actions have caused harm to others and/or yourself and outlining ways to restore broken relationships so that we can all get along better. Let's work together to make our school a happy and positive place for everyone!

Transformative School Climate and Culture

Detroit Public Schools Community District's schools are working to provide engaging, safe, and supportive environments that foster well-being and meet the academic, social, emotional, and physical needs of students. Through this Code and the work happening in our schools, we hope to build honest and open relationships with our students without fear of retribution, promote a safe culture within our buildings, and create an environment conducive to learning that refrains from interrupting the learning environment for students to the greatest extent possible.

To achieve a transformative culture, the Student Code of Conduct shall undergo a sequence of annually phased, structural revisions. Everyone in the school community, including students, families, principals, school staff, and the district office, has rights and responsibilities that help make our school strong. We all have an important part to play!

When someone makes a mistake, the way we handle it is all about promoting positive relationships and teaching good behaviors. We want to help each other learn and grow. Suspending someone from school is something we only do if we've tried everything else and it's the last option. We want to avoid that as much as possible. To make our school even better, we keep improving the Student Code of Conduct each year. We do it step by step, so everyone can get used to the changes and work together to make our school a happy and positive place. So, let's remember that we all have a role to play in making our school a great place to learn. By treating each other with kindness and working together, we can make our school a place where everyone feels good and can do their best!

Multi-Tiered System of Supports



Detroit Public Schools Community District understands that when people in charge work together with students, they feel happier and behave better. The Code of Conduct's goal is to build a strong community and handle problems by fixing any harm and making relationships better. Detroit Public Schools Community District uses clear plans to help teachers, students, families, and others in the community work together to make sure schools are welcoming and students do well.

Leadership Teams: Each school has a Climate & Culture Leadership Team (CLT), Engagement Leadership Team (ELT), and an Instructional Leadership Team (ILT) that meet regularly to review data and collaboratively plan appropriate schoolwide and individual student interventions that support student growth and proficiency, as well as positive culture, climate, and engagement. The alignment and cohesion of leadership teams create sustainable, scalable, and engaging school climates to support the successful implementation of multi-tiered systems of support and student achievement.

The Tiered Delivery System is like a plan to help all students in school. It has different levels or "tiers" of help. The goal is to support each child in the best way for them. The first tier helps all students in the regular classroom. The second tier gives extra help to some students who need it. The third tier provides even more help to a few students who need the most support. The Tiered Delivery System helps teachers and schools use their resources wisely. They use a framework that works well for all students. One important part of this system is PBIS, which helps with good behavior. It also helps students with their schoolwork, attendance, and social needs. This way, all schools can work together to make sure every child gets the right help they need to succeed.

Restorative Practices are actions and ways to fix things when something goes wrong. They help us build friendships, solve problems, and make things right after something bad happens. In school, there are special teams of leaders who work together to make sure everyone gets the help they need. They use different methods to support students and make sure the school is a safe and happy place for everyone. A big part of making our school a great place is having a plan for teaching and learning that helps every student with their feelings, interactions with others, and schoolwork. It's important for all of us, whether we're students, families, community members, or staff, to work together and follow our beliefs, expectations, and promises to make our school the best it can be.

Expect Respect

At the core of a positive school climate and culture is a teaching and learning plan designed to support every student in their social, emotional, and academic development. We know behavior education is complex work that happens in classrooms and cafeterias, on buses and playgrounds, and even in offices and auditoriums. Whether you are a student, family member, community member, or staff member, we all have a responsibility to embody our beliefs, our expectations, and our commitments.

WE EXPECT:

- Students, staff, and families demonstrate respect to one another and hold high expectations for behavior.
- Students, staff, and families to build and sustain ongoing positive and authentic relationships.
- Students, staff, and families to contribute to a safe learning environment.

WE BELIEVE:

- In authentic relationships and a supportive community that fosters a sense of belonging.
- In a thriving school environment where staff and students are physically and emotionally safe.
- In the importance of student and staff voice in decision making.
- Families and school staff must be collaborative partners in supporting every student.

WE WILL:

- Utilize innovative strategies and supports to create a positive school community where students, staff and families feel safe.
- Provide schools with the necessary resources, professional development, and technical assistance to implement the Expect Respect plan.

Schools with positive culture have:

- Effective leadership that creates and communicates clear expectations, communicates openly and honestly, is
 accessible and supportive of school staff and professional learning, and supports students in acquiring and
 effectively applying the knowledge, attitudes, and skills necessary to understand and manage emotions, setting
 and achieving positive goals, feeling, and showing empathy for others, establishing and maintaining positive
 relationships, and making responsible decisions.
- Positive relationships with all community members students, parents, teachers/staff, school police, and community partners.
- Training and resources that provide social, emotional, and academic support, and positive interventions designed to help students problem solve, develop appropriate school and classroom behaviors, and reduce the need for classroom removal or school police intervention.
- Supports for students who are experiencing emotional crisis, trauma, or serious challenges in their homes or communities.
- Academic and extracurricular activities for all students that meet developmental and academic needs.
- A learning environment where students and staff feel physically and emotionally safe.

Expect Respect is Detroit Public Schools Community District's universal theme that reinforces that those in authority must lead by example, teach, and reteach students the value of making positive choices, and help them own consequences when behavior is not appropriate. For DPSCD schools to be institutions of learning and positive culture, the provision of clear expectations for all community members shall ensure that staff, students, and parents feel safe and respected at school.

In teaching our students the importance of respect for self and others, DPSCD outlines five principles to serve as an important foundation to guide behavior, both individually and in interpersonal relationships. If students abide by these principles, the learning environment will be strengthened.

- 1. My words, actions, and attitudes always demonstrate respect for myself and others.
- 2. I seek to correct the harm that I have caused to others in the school community.
- 3. I demonstrate pride in myself, in my future, and in my school by arriving on time, dressed appropriately, and prepared to focus on my studies.
- 4. I always seek the most peaceful means of resolving conflict and obtain the assistance of teachers, administrators, or school staff when I am unable to resolve conflicts on my own.
- 5. I take pride in promoting a safe and clean learning environment at my school.

Expect Respect Campaign Monthly Themes

Month	Core Value	Character Trait	SEL Competency
September	Tenacity	Responsibility	Self-Management
October	Integrity	Respect	Relationship Skills
November	Students First	Kindness	Social Awareness
December	Service	Generosity	Social Awareness
January	Service	Citizenship	Responsible Decision Making
February	Excellence	Self-Control	Self-Management
March	Integrity	Honesty	Self-Awareness
April	Students First	Compassion	Social Awareness
May	Students First	Cooperation	Relationship Skills
June	Transformative	Acceptance	Social Awareness

DPSCD Public Safety Department Role in Schools

In an effort to provide safe school environments, the District created its own Public Safety Department in 2004. This action was to allow for the efficient and effective response to issues within our school community. As an Anti-Racist District, We frame the work of our internal public safety department in support of the community, and in support of the safety of our students. We do not support a Public Safety Department that looks to criminalize our students and further perpetuate the school-to-prison pipeline. To that end, the Detroit Public Schools Community District Public Safety Department partners with school leaders to:

- Develop comprehensive safety plans: best practices in safety measures for schools and coordination of safety drills to prepare for potential risks and threats to the school community.
- Utilize mediation to help address internal disputes to de-escalate tensions for school community members.
- Deliver educational presentations and lectures for both students and staff about in-person and online safety, health, and behaviors that support health and respect for self and others.
- Provide safety functions such as monitoring large events, conducting property searches when deemed necessary, and in the most extreme cases, detaining and arresting individuals involved in crimes.

The DPSCD Public Safety Department does not enforce nor implement the Code of Conduct.

Our District Public Safety officers must have several professional and personal traits that allow them to integrate successfully into a school environment. In addition to the services they provide, these officers also must adhere to all District policies, model moral and ethical behavior for students, and help promote better relationships between the public and law enforcement officers by having a student-friendly, non-threatening attitude that puts school communities at ease.

By Board action, effective July 2020, an oversight taskforce comprised of community members will work with the District's Public Safety Department to ensure the most comprehensive and supportive measures are in place to foster safe school communities.

DPSCD Public Safety Department 8500 Cameron Street Detroit, Michigan 48211 (313) 748-6000

The Detroit Public Schools Community District Department of Public Safety ("Department") promotes the success of all students by ensuring a safe and effective learning environment.

The Department shall employ law enforcement officers to protect students, staff, and visitors as well as District facilities. Such officers shall have the same powers, immunities and authority granted by law to peace officers and police officers to detect crime, to enforce the criminal laws of the State of Michigan and to enforce other Michigan laws, local ordinances and District policies.

A Chief of Police will serve as the chief executive officer of the Department. The Department's Chief of Police and the chief's designee(s) shall, among other things: (i) manage the Department; and (ii) establish standard operating procedures for the conduct of the Department's law enforcement officers and other Department members.

Policy 8404 – Public Safety

Roles, Rights, Responsibilities and Expectations

The Code of Conduct applied to students at all times when they are on Detroit Public Schools Community District property or attending school events, whether they are in the actual school building or doing school activities online. This means that the rules cover what students do during school hours, but also before and after school, like when they are in clubs, playing sports, riding the school bus, going on field trips, or even just going to and from school.

The school will carefully consider each situation when deciding if the Code of Conduct rules should be applied. They will look at things like how close the incident was to the school, how much time has passed since the student was at school, if there was a fight or argument on school property, and if the incident caused problems at school. This way, the school can make fair decisions about how to handle each situation.

Detroit Public Schools Community District is required to take additional steps when considering disciplinary consequences involving students with special needs or disabilities. The Code of Conduct requires Principals and school staff to follow federal and state laws and regulations, including procedures for determining manifestation (i.e., whether the behavior is linked to a student's disability, conducting Functional Behavioral Assessments and developing Behavioral Intervention Plans, Board of Education policies, Superintendent directives, and administrative guidelines) as well as applicable agency directives.

Detroit Public Schools Community District is committed to applying the Code of Conduct fairly and without discrimination based on a student's Individualized Education Program (IEP), 504 plan, race, ethnicity, national origin, gender, sexual orientation, or religion.

Freedom from Discrimination, Harassment, and Bullying: DPSCD does not discriminate based on race, color, national origin, sex, sexual orientation, transgender identity, disability, religion, height, weight, citizenship, marital or family status, ancestry, genetic information, or any other legally protected category in its educational programs and activities, including employment and admissions. Questions? Concerns? Contact the Civil Rights and Compliance Department (CRC), dpscd.compliance@detroitk12.org, call the DPSCD Parent Hotline at (313) 240-4377, or in person at 3011 West Grand Boulevard, 10th Floor, Detroit, MI 48202.

<u>The Right to Due Process</u>: Due process safeguards must apply in instances where the behavior or rights of students are being evaluated. Students must be treated with fairness and considering the total circumstances. Students have the right to be fully informed of the alleged breach of behavior and be provided an opportunity to respond to such charges. Any permanent record that results from the student's actions should clearly state whether the charges were substantiated. The Code sets forth the procedural rules for student discipline.

<u>Make-up Work</u>: Students removed from school for any disciplinary action are entitled to make-up work. Make-up work will be provided to parents by the Principal/designee within two (2) school days of the assigned discipline. Parents are responsible for picking up the assignments and returning the completed work for grading. Students are allowed the same number of days to make-up the work as the days of absence for discipline.

<u>Effective Communication</u>: To ensure effective communication with our students' families or guardians who are disabled, including those who are limited in English language proficiency or deaf or hard of hearing, or blind, we provide appropriate auxiliary aids and services free of charge, such as qualified sign language and oral interpreters, audio recordings, readers, and braille. For free help, please contact your child's school or the District's Translations Coordinator at (313) 873-4020 or (313) 212-4312.

STUDENTS

RIGHTS, RESPONSIBILITIES & EXPECTATIONS

The Code of Conduct is your guide for expectations at school. Your Principal, teachers, and other staff members will support your efforts to be successful in the personal, social, and academic behaviors that are expected at school.

When you follow the rules and guidelines in the Code of Conduct, you are being a good citizen and showing good character. This helps to make your school a place where everyone is respectful, responsible, and safe, which is great for learning. The Code of Conduct also tells you about behaviors that are not allowed at school. It explains what happens if someone doesn't follow the rules. The goal is to give them a chance to learn from their mistakes and become better students.

STUDENTS HAVE THE RIGHT TO:

- A free public-school education, equitable academic resources, and inclusive teaching and learning environments in all classrooms.
- A socially, emotionally, and physically safe and positive school climate.
- Be taught by effective teachers.
- Due process.
- Be treated with respect and dignity by the school community.
- Positive school disciplinary policies and practices.
- Participate in decisions that affect their education.

RESPONSIBILITIES:

- Attend school and receive a free and appropriate public education with equitable resources.
- Meet the standards of behavior in the Code of Conduct and abide by it.
- Abide by and follow other school rules, regulations, and policies.
- Behave in a manner that contributes to a safe learning environment and supports the rights of others to learn.
- Be truthful about and accountable for your actions. Try to correct and improve unsafe behavior with the support of teachers and staff.
- Demonstrate pride in self and academic future by dressing appropriately for school and school functions.
- Show respect for school property and respect the property of others.
- Ensure the school is updated with accurate contact information including, but not limited to, home address, telephone number(s), and e-mail address.
- Respond in a timely manner to communications from school.

EXPECTATIONS:

- Learn in a safe environment that is inclusive to all.
- Receive a written/electronic copy of District and school policies and procedures.
- Feel safe from retaliation when bringing complaints or concerns to the school Principal, staff, or District officials.
- Request or challenge in writing an explanation of anything in their education records.
- Be told, orally and in writing, the reason(s) for disciplinary decisions.
- Receive information about the procedures for appealing disciplinary decisions.
- Contact the family/guardian to be present and/or grant permission for an interview to be conducted with the police present.
- Family/guardian will be notified of the nature of the investigation and other details as appropriate unless the situation involves child abuse or neglect.

PARENTS/GUARDIANS/CAREGIVERS/FAMILIES RIGHTS, RESPONSIBILITIES & EXPECTATIONS

The Code of Conduct is your guide for understanding the personal, social, and academic behaviors that are expected of your child at school and how school Principals, teachers and staff will work with you and your child to help them demonstrate positive behavior and enjoy academic success.

PARENTS/GUARDIANS/CAREGIVERS/FAMILIES HAVE THE RIGHT TO:

- A free public school education for their child.
- Access information about their child.
- Be actively involved and engaged in the education of their child.
- File complaints and/or appeals regarding matters affecting their child's education.

RESPONSIBILITIES:

- Ensure regular, on-time, daily attendance for the duration of the school year.
- Remain aware of the child's performance by maintaining contact with the school through reviewing work, progress reports, and other school notices, talking to the child about school, and meeting with school staff as requested.
- Be aware of the academic and behavior expectations outlined by District policies and this Code, as well as, the procedures of your child's individual school/classrooms, and help your child understand them.
- Partner and collaborate with the school to support expectations of academic achievement and appropriate behavior in school and the community.
- Be respectful and courteous to staff, other parents/guardians, and students while on school premises, refraining from disruptive behavior.
- Support your child in ways that maintain a climate of mutual respect and dignity for all students regardless of
 actual or perceived race, color, weight, national origin, ethnic group, religion, religious practice, disability, sexual
 orientation, gender, or sex.
- Inform school officials and/or staff of changes in the home situation that may affect student conduct or performance.
- Ensure the school is updated with accurate contact information including, but not limited to, home address, telephone number(s), and email address(es).
- Respond in a timely manner to communications from school.

EXPECTATIONS:

- To be treated courteously, fairly, and respectfully by all school staff.
- Receive information about the policies of the Board and procedures that relate to their children's education.
- Receive regular reports, written, oral or electronic, from school staff regarding their children's academic progress, behavior, and attendance including, but not limited to, report cards, behavior progress reports, and conferences.
- Receive information of inappropriate or disruptive behaviors by their child and any disciplinary actions taken by school staff.
- Receive information about due process procedures for disciplinary matters concerning their children, including information on conferences and appeals.
- Have access to and receive recommendations for support services (e.g., tutoring, after-school programs, academic
 programs, mental health services, etc.) within Detroit Public Schools Community District and the community.
- Receive information about services for students with disabilities and English language learners, when applicable.
- Receive language assistance services (including oral and written translations) to participate in District programs.

SCHOOL STAFF (TEACHERS, SUPPORT STAFF, ADMINISTRATORS) RIGHTS, RESPONSIBILITIES & EXPECTATIONS

The Code of Conduct is like a map that helps everyone at school behave well. It tells us what to do when someone doesn't follow the rules or behaves badly. When we all follow the Code, there will be fewer bad behaviors, and we can all feel good about ourselves and how we treat others. If you have any worries about safety or how the school feels, you can talk to your school Principal. They will work with you and others to keep the school a safe and happy place for learning and working together.

At the school level, the Climate and Culture Leadership Team (CLT) assesses and reviews disciplinary data and prepares recommendations for improving school climate, discipline, and student support. At the District level, the Office of Whole Child Support is responsible for monitoring the effective implementation of school-wide expectations, rules, policies, systems, Positive Behavior Intervention Supports, and classroom management, as well as Expect Respect. The Office of Employee Relations monitors issues related to staff concerns related to the school environment.

SCHOOL STAFF HAS THE RIGHT TO:

- Work in a positive environment for teaching and learning, safe, and free from verbal or physical threats.
- Be treated courteously, fairly, and respectfully by students, parents or guardians, and other school staff.
- Receive support, training, and assistance when applying interventions, support, and discipline.
- Communicate concerns, suggestions, and complaints to Detroit Public Schools Community District's District office and have them acknowledged without fear of retaliation.
- Receive supportive professional development and the necessary resources to deliver quality instruction.

RESPONSIBILITIES:

- Create a climate of mutual respect and dignity for all students by establishing expectations for student behavior and academic performance that strengthen students' self-concept.
- Treat students, parents/guardians, and other staff courteously, fairly, and respectfully.
- Know and adhere to school policies and rules, including the Code of Conduct, and apply them in a fair and consistent manner.
- Communicate regularly with students, parents, and others informing them about student performance, behavior, and attendance.
- Protect the legal rights, health, safety, and welfare of all students.
- Address student misconduct with appropriate interventions, supports, disciplinary actions, reporting, and followup in accordance with the Code of Conduct, applicable law, and District policies.
- Provide alternative education and makeup work for students with lawful absences, including those students who
 are absent for disciplinary reasons.
- Maintain accurate records and reports, and document disciplinary actions in accordance with state law, as well
 as District policy and procedures.
- Maintain and respect the confidentiality of students, parents, and school staff.

EXPECTATIONS

- Establish expectations for all students and staff that promote positive behavior, interventions and supports and discipline for inappropriate conduct when appropriate.
- Address any personal biases that may prevent equal treatment of students in the school or classroom setting.
- Support the development of and student participation in appropriate extracurricular activities.
- Refer students to the appropriate committees, departments, offices, divisions, agencies, or organizations when outside support is necessary.

Every School Day Matters

There is a strong relationship between regular school attendance and academic performance. Students who are in class and on time daily have the best chance for school success!

Attendance Expectations

- Students are expected to attend all classes each day.
- Students are expected to be on time for each class during the school day.
- Students are to remain in school the entire school day.
- The District complies with the Michigan Compulsory School Law, which states that all students between the ages of six (6) and eighteen (18) are to attend school during the entire school year.

Absences

- Notify the school regarding your child's absence.
- Send a note regarding the reason for the absence when your child returns to school.
- A note should be received within three (3) days of your child's return to the school.
- Make sure that all make-up work is completed and returned to the teacher.
- Students are required to have an excused absence to participate in extracurricular activities.
- Students who miss at least 10% of the school year, for any reason, are considered chronically absent.
- Students who have an excessive number of unexcused absences are considered truant and may be referred to the Wayne County Prosecutor's Office.

Tardiness

- Students who arrive later than the beginning of the school day or after the start time of class without an excuse and/or pass are considered tardy.
- Excessive tardiness disrupts the learning process and negatively impacts the student's academic achievement.

Consequences for Irregular Attendance

- Loss of learning
- Loss of engagement and sense of belonging in the school environment
- Possible failure in class or grade level.
- Investigation by the Attendance Agent/Attendance Team.
- Referral of student for Department of Health and Human Services ("DHHS") action.
- Referral of parents to the Wayne County Prosecutor for prosecution.

With your support, we can make a difference in your child's academic success.

Attendance Policy

The law in Michigan governing compulsory attendance requires in MCL 380.1561:

- for a child who turned age 11 before December 1, 2009, or who entered grade 6 before 2009, the child's parent, guardian, or other person in this state having control and charge of the child shall send that child to a public school during the entire school year from the age of 6 to the child's (16) sixteenth birthday.
- for a child who turns age 11 on or after December 1, 2009, or a child who was age 11 before that date and enters grade 6 in 2009 or later, the child's parent, guardian, or other person in this state having control and charge of the child shall send the child to a public school during the entire school year from the age of 6 to the child's (18) eighteenth birthday.

The Board as an agency of the State of Michigan is required to enforce the regular attendance of students. The Board recognizes that presence in the classroom enables students to participate in instruction, class discussions, and other related activities. Educators shall encourage regular attendance of students, maintain accurate attendance records, and follow reporting procedures prescribed by the Superintendent or designees. As such, regular and timely attendance, and classroom participation are integral to instilling incentives for the student to excel.

The classroom experience is of unique value, and it cannot be duplicated by make-up work. Student interaction and the development of ideas through discussion are lost when a student is absent, tardy, dropped off late, or picked-up early by a parent/guardian. A student's enrollment in a course is their commitment to attend all class sessions. Therefore, it is the intent of this policy to disallow students from being absent from class unless a situation exists which makes their absence absolutely necessary. The Board directs the Superintendent to establish an attendance plan that will foster responsibility and reliability on the part of the District students to attend all classes. This attendance plan should be updated annually and located in an easily accessible location on the District website. Students will acknowledge greater emphasis on attendance at school because credit in their classes will be contingent upon their presence.

ATTENDANCE DEFINED

<u>School Attendance</u> - Students are to be counted in attendance only if they are actually present for at least two (2) hours of the day or engaged in a school-approved educational activity which constitutes a part of the instructional program for the student.

<u>Class Attendance</u> - Students are to be counted in attendance if they are physically present in class for at least half of the class period, have been excused by the teacher on a class-related assignment, or have been requested by a member of the school support staff for an approved school activity.

<u>Tardiness</u> - A student is considered tardy if they are not present at the moment the school bell rings for the class assigned. NOTE: If a student is not present when attendance is taken but is present later in the school day, that student must be considered in attendance, but tardy, and the absence should be changed. A student who is tardy should never remain on record as being absent.

Early Sign-Outs – Early release is discouraged within the final thirty (30) minutes of the school day.

Attendance is required of all students, except those exempted by State law, during the days and hours that the school is in session.

A student may be considered a full-time equivalent student provided the student is enrolled in the following number of courses as defined by State law, per school year:

- A. Grades K-8: at least two (2) attendance-taking courses, and
- B. Grades 9 and above: at least six (6) attendance-taking courses.

A student enrolled in the District's alternative education program may be considered a full-time student provided the student is enrolled in at least four (4) attendance-taking courses, as defined by State law, per school year in the alternative education environment.

The Principal or designees shall require, from the parent or legal guardian of each student or from an adult student who has been absent for any reason, a written statement confirming the cause for such absence for excused reasons. The student's parent or legal guardian shall inform the school when a student will be absent for excused reasons as soon as possible. Failure to report and explain the absence(s) shall result in unexcused absence(s). The Principal shall have the final authority to determine the acceptability of the reason for the absence(s). The Superintendent and designee(s) reserve the right to verify such statements and to investigate the cause of each:

- A. Single absence;
- B. Prolonged absence;
- C. Absence of more than two (2) days' duration;
- D. Repeated unexplained full and partial-day absences and tardies;
- E. Repeated explained and unexplained early student pick-ups; and
- F. Repeated explained and unexplained late student drop-offs.

The Superintendent or designees shall report infractions of the law regarding student attendance for students below the age of eighteen (18) to the proper internal and external authorities.

EXCUSED ABSENCES:

Brief illness, appointments, and family business are considered absences for purposes of meeting attendance policy requirements. An absence will be considered an "excused absence" if a parent/guardian contacts the school and provides a reason for the absence. The absence, as well as the reason for the absence, will then be documented in our attendance system. Excused absences may include, but are not limited to, the following:

- A. Personal illness of the student (medical evidence may be required by the Principal for absences exceeding five (5) consecutive days). The written statement must include all days the student has been absent from school. If a student is continually sick and repeatedly absent from school due to a specific medical condition, they must be under the supervision of a healthcare provider in order to receive excused absences from school;
- B. Medically verified chronic illnesses statement signed by a physician;
- C. Family emergency;
- D. Recovery from accident;
- E. Legally documented court subpoena, a required court appearance, or placement in detention at a juvenile center in which the student continues their education;
- F. Professional appointments;
- G. Death in the immediate family. Immediate family is defined as the student's or the student's legal guardian's parents, spouse, children, and siblings by blood, adoption, or marriage;
- H. Observation or celebration of a religious holiday or service when it is mandated for all members of a faith that such a holiday or service should be observed, or for pre-arranged religious instruction (documentation of the religious affiliation of the student may be required by school officials) as further set forth below;
- I. Academic activity or school-sponsored field trip directly related to the instructional outcomes of one (1) or more course(s);
- J. Approved student activities such as Student Council, National Honor Society, class meetings, and academic/athletic competitions;
- K. A short-term family commitment with prior notification of the absence being provided to the school administrator;
- L. College visits;
- M. Out-of-school suspension from school; and/or
- N. Other individual student absences beyond the control of the parent or student, as determined and approved by the Principal (requires support documentation).

Long-term absenteeism, including excused absences, may lead to the failure of a course, the necessity to repeat a course, the possibility of retention, and/or the filing of a truancy petition.

ABSENCES FOR RELIGIOUS INSTRUCTION

Upon the signed request of a student's parent, the Board will allow exceptions to the student's continuous attendance at school:

- A. for religious instruction outside the school building for no more than two (2) class hours per week;
- B. for attendance at confirmation classes provided the child is between the ages of twelve (12) and thirteen (13) years of age and the instructional period is no longer than five (5) months in either of those years; and
- C. for observance of a recognized religious holiday.

A student must be properly registered, and a copy of such registration must be filed with the Principal.

The time for release for religious instruction or education shall be arranged by the Superintendent or designee in keeping with the regulations of the State Board of Education. They will also ensure the appropriate continuance of the instructional program in the public school during such release times.

No solicitation for attendance at religious instruction shall be permitted on District premises. No member of the staff shall neither encourage nor discourage participation in any religious instruction program.

<u>Policy 5200 – Student Attendance</u>

Chronic Absenteeism

Chronic absenteeism and habitual truancy are important predictors of school performance, including high school graduation. Average daily attendance rates often mask the number of chronically absent students, which equates to missing at least ten percent (10%) of the school year or approximately eighteen (18) school days for any reason.

Chronic absenteeism can be determined by comparing the number of absences in relation to the number of school days. Chronic absenteeism can be defined as excused, unexcused, and suspension days. These categories correlate to the multitier systems of support and provide the recommended strategy to make positive impacts on chronic absenteeism.

Chronic absenteeism in the school District indicates the presence of a much larger salient issue. Thus, addressing chronic absenteeism will resolve other issues in the District as they relate to ensuring students have the resources to be successful, increasing student-family engagement, data-driven resource interventions, and enabling college-career readiness.

Climate and Culture Leadership Team Role in Attendance Interventions

The Climate and Culture Leadership Team (CLT) in collaboration with school administration will create a PBIS/Attendance Plan which will include strategies for improving school and individual student attendance metrics and monitoring the progress of individual students. This school-wide progress monitoring plan will assist in the tracking of student data and the identification of early signs of attendance concerns. The CLT will develop school-wide incentives to recognize students for appropriate and improved attendance.

3-6-9 Absence Notification Process

Procedures around parent notification of attendance concerns are key to decreasing the percentage of students who are chronically absent.

Unexcused Days Absent	Follow-Up Action Required
1-2 Days	Attendance Agent/Attendance Team/ School Personnel contact home (phone, text, ROBO, email, etc.)
Day 3	Intervention by Attendance Agent/Attendance Team which can include but is not limited to a contact home, daily check-in monitoring, meetings with parents/students, attendance letter #1, etc.
6 Days	Intervention by Attendance Agent/Attendance Team which can include but is not limited to a contact home, home visits, daily check-in monitoring, meetings with parents/students, attendance letter #2, etc.
7-8 Days	Intervention by Attendance Agent/Attendance Team which can include but is not limited to a contact home, home visits, daily check-in monitoring, meetings with parents/students, attendance letter #3, implementation of an attendance success agreement, Attendance Intervention Plan developed and implemented, etc.
9 Days	Intervention by Attendance Agent/Attendance Team which can include but is not limited to a contact home, home visits, daily check-in monitoring, meetings with parents/students, legal letter, implementation of the Attendance Intervention Plan developed and implemented and monitored, etc.
9+ Days	Intervention by Attendance Agent/Attendance Team which can include but is not limited to a contact, home visits, daily check-in monitoring, meetings with parents/students, legal letter, implementation of the Attendance Intervention Plan developed and implemented, Community Learning and Education for Adolescent Restoration, (C.L.E.A.R.), Juvenile Complaint request for action, delinquency proceedings (JC01), etc.

Attendance Agents/Attendance Team assists in providing the necessary wrap-around services for the students to attend school. Intervention and communication with the family should be consistent if the student continues to be absent from school. Students will be referred to C.L.E.A.R. for additional interventions and an Attendance Intervention Plan will be initiated and monitored at the school site by the attendance agent/attendance team and the school Culture Leadership Team (CLT).

Progress Monitoring

District staff will use the Power School system daily to generate a report of teachers who have not taken attendance. This report will be provided to Principals and Principal leaders for appropriate follow-up. Parents will receive an automated attendance call if students are not in class. Additional focus will be given at the school level to verify that attendance data has been accurately collected.

Weekly, attendance agents/attendance team will receive a report of students who have been absent for at least 3 days, with a teacher contact log for parent notice. Through a weekly check-in process, attendance agents/attendance team will contact students who have been designated as chronically absent and logs will be included in discussion during the Climate and Culture Leadership Team (CLT) meetings for review, and collaborative problem-solving around how to remove barriers and assist the student in regular school attendance.

During monthly Attendance Agent meetings, staff will review individual school data and discuss strategies that are showing the greatest improvement. Attendance Agent notes will be reviewed weekly through Power School and Attendance Intervention Plans will be submitted for additional monitoring. To further support the importance of attendance, Principals will share attendance data through schoolwide assemblies, posting current attendance data in highly visible areas of the school, data charts, parent meetings, staff meetings, and other relevant methods.

Attendance Interventions and Supports

The CLT addresses the attendance needs of a school through implementing intervention strategies. They use different ways to help students come to school every day, like rewards and extra help. Other teams at school also check how well attendance is going for all students and give them the support they need to come to school. In DPSCD, all schools have weekly meetings with the CLT to talk about attendance and how they can help students come to school regularly.

Dress Code

The intention of the Dress Code is to promote an inclusive and positive school community, and as such, will apply to regular school days, summer school days, after-school events, as well as any school-related events and course/club activities, such as graduation ceremonies, dances, prom, and athletic events. To ensure effective and equitable enforcement of this dress code, school staff shall enforce the dress code consistently without reinforcing or increasing marginalization or oppression of any group based on race, sex, gender identity, gender expression, sexual orientation, ethnicity, religion, cultural observance, household income, or body type/size.

DPSCD does not discriminate on the basis of race including hair texture and protective hairstyles, color, national origin, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, disability, religion, height, weight, citizenship, marital or family status, ancestry, genetic information, or any other legally protected category in its educational programs and activities.

Students and parents/guardians who feel there has been discriminatory enforcement of the dress code should report the concern to school staff and/or the Civil Rights and Compliance Department (CRC).

Individual schools have the option of requiring students to wear a uniform — usually a solid collar shirt, polo, or t-shirt and skirt, pants, or shorts. Check with your school for detailed information regarding the style and color of the uniform.

Students cannot be excluded from school for not wearing their uniforms. Concerns about school uniform requirements should be addressed with your school's Principal. If financial need makes purchasing the required uniform difficult for your family, please inquire at your school. The school may have information about uniform exchanges or low-cost purchasing options.

At schools that do not require a uniform, students must conform to this dress code:

General Requirements

- Students may be required to wear certain types of clothing, usually for safety reasons, while participating in classes such as physical education, trade classes, chemistry, etc., or in curricular and extracurricular classes or activities such as band, choir, dance, drama, and theater.
- Students are responsible for keeping themselves and their clothes neat and clean.
- Students may wear their hair in any style they choose.
- Head coverings (including hoods and bandanas) may not be worn in the school building. However, students may
 wear head coverings in the school building as an expression of sincerely held religious belief (e.g., hijab, yarmulke,
 etc.) or cultural expression (e.g., a Gele) or to reasonably accommodate medical or disability-related issues (e.g.,
 protective helmets).
- Students may wear PPE (medical face masks, gloves) to guard against health-related risks.

Students May Not Wear

- Styles of clothes that endanger themselves or other students.
- Bedtime attire such as pajamas, undershirts, or undergarments as outerwear.
- Students' clothing or tattoos may not display statements or pictures that are related to the use of drugs, alcohol, tobacco products, or sex, or that promote hate and/or violence or signify gang affiliations.
- Attire that may be considered weapons, including but not limited to chain belts or wallet chains.
- Jewelry or similar artifacts that are obscene or may cause disruptions to the educational environment.
- Hair rollers or hair curlers.
- Flip-flops, house slippers, steel-toe-shoes or boots, or any other type of footwear that could constitute a safety hazard.
- Face mask such as ski-mask or similar.

Discipline of Students with Disabilities

The standards of conduct contained within this Code apply to all students, including those students identified as special education or Section 504 and those suspected of having a disability. However, due to the unique needs of students with disabilities, appropriate disciplinary action and implementation of the Student Code of Conduct will vary in accordance with applicable local, state, and federal laws.

Students with a Disability

"Student with a disability" means a person who: (I) is determined by an individualized education program team (IEPT), or a hearing officer to have one (1) or more of the impairments that necessitate special education or related services, or both; (II) who is not more than 25 years of age as of September 1 of the school year of enrollment; (III) who has not completed a typical course of study leading to a high school diploma; and (IV) who has not graduated from high school. A student who reaches the age of 26 years after September 1 is a "student with a disability" and entitled to continue a special education program or service until the end of that school year. These students are commonly referred to by local, state, federal, and education agencies as students who are included in the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act ("IDEA"), or IDEA students.

Section 504

This designation refers to section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, which is designed to eliminate discrimination on the basis of handicap in any program or activity receiving federal financial assistance. Under federal law, a "handicapped person" is defined as one who has a physical or mental impairment that substantially limits one or more major life activities, has a record of such impairment, or is regarded as having such impairment. Students who meet these requirements should have a 504 Evaluation and Educational Plan developed by a 504 team.

Disciplinary Actions for IDEA and Section 504 Students

When an administrator is considering disciplinary action involving the removal of an IDEA or 504 student, the student's records shall be reviewed to determine the total number of days during the current school year that the student has missed due to disciplinary action. Once this determination has been made, the following procedures must be followed:

- 1. If the student has not accumulated more than 10 (ten) days of disciplinary removal for the school year, then utilize procedures as outlined for non-disabled students.
- 2. If the pending suspension is more than ten (10) consecutive days (including proposed expulsions) **OR** if the suspension is less than ten (10) days but would result in ten (10) cumulative days for one school year and a pattern of removals has been determined, this constitutes a change in placement. Before implementing a suspension or expulsion that constitutes a change in placement, the student must have an IEP/504 meeting to determine whether the behavior issue is a manifestation of the student's disability (a "manifestation determination" review). This meeting must take place within ten (10) school days of the decision to change the placement from school.

¹ Michigan Administrative Rules for Special Education, Rule 340.1702

Exception

In cases where the offense involves the current use of drugs/alcohol, the Section 504 meeting is not necessary. The student may be disciplined in the same manner as non-disabled students. Note, if the offense is centered on possession alone, not use, a manifestation hearing is still required.

If the IEP/504 team determines that the behavior is a manifestation of the student's disability, the student is NOT subject to further disciplinary action. However, the evaluation will continue to determine whether the student's current educational placement is appropriate. The student MUST return to their original placement UNLESS the parent agrees otherwise through the IEP/504 process.

EXCEPTION:

If the offense involves any of the following, school personnel may remove the student to an interim alternative educational setting for not more than forty-five (45) days:

- Carrying or possessing a weapon at school or at a school function
- Knowingly possessing or using illegal drugs
- Selling or soliciting the sale of a controlled substance while at school or at a school function
- Inflicting serious bodily injury upon another person

If the IEP/504 team determines that the behavior is NOT a manifestation of the student's disability, the student may be removed in the same manner as any non-disabled student.²

The school must continue to provide IDEA student services so that the student progresses toward IEP goals, even if the child is no longer served in the same school environment. Section 504 students are not entitled to a continuation of specialized services.

The IEP team decides what services will be provided and the location where the services will be rendered.

When a change in placement occurs, the student is entitled to the procedural protections of Section 504/IDEA, including, an expedited due process hearing (appeal). When an appeal is pending, the student's placement will remain in the disciplinary removal setting until a decision is reached or the expiration of the removal issued by the District, whichever comes first.

Students with disabilities, even if expelled, must be provided with an appropriate education in an alternative educational setting.

² A student with a disability who is not currently engaged in the illegal use of drugs or alcohol and who commits a drug or alcohol offense is afforded Section 504 protections, including the right to a manifestation determination (29 USC §705(20) © (iv)).

Students Suspected of Having a Disability

Students suspected of having a disability have the right to assert any of the disciplinary protections available to students with disabilities if prior to the behavior subject to disciplinary action, one or more of the following exist:

- 1. The parent/guardian(s) have expressed specific concerns in writing to supervisory or administrative personnel of the District, or a teacher of the student, that the student is in need of special education and related services.
- 2. The parent/guardians(s) have requested or consented in writing to a special education evaluation.
- 3. The student's teacher, or other school personnel, expressed specific concerns about a pattern of behavior demonstrated by the student, directly to the appropriate supervisor or director of special education for the District.
- 4. The District shall not be deemed to have knowledge that the student is a student with a disability if the parent of the student has previously refused to consent to an evaluation of the student, or has refused special education and related services, or the student was found ineligible for special education.

If a request is made for an evaluation of a student during the time in which the student is subjected to disciplinary measures, the student remains in the disciplinary removal setting and the evaluation shall be conducted in an expedited manner. If the student is found to be a student with a disability, the District shall provide special education and related services as appropriate.

Where a student presents an immediate threat to the safety of others, school officials may promptly adjust the placement or suspend the child for up to ten (10) school days, in accordance with procedures applied to non-disabled students.

Early Elementary Students with Suspected Disabilities

In instances where a student who may be in the early stages of exposure to the education environment (Kindergarten – Grade 2) has displayed three or more instances of erratic and potentially dangerous behavior that poses an immediate risk to the life, safety, and/or welfare of staff and/or the student's peers, to the extent the District suspects a disability under the IDEA or Section 504, the District staff will convene a review of existing evaluation data or other evaluation planning meeting information and will expedite any evaluation that may be appropriate with the consent of the Parent or Guardian.

The District staff will expedite the evaluation and, during such time, the District staff will attempt to work with the Parent or Guardian to identify an educational placement and supports (either in school or in another interim setting) that will address the safety concerns, while also educating the student and conducting assessments for the student. The Superintendent or their designee will be kept informed of the situation and setting where the student will be educated and assessed by the staff. If the Parent or Guardian refuses to consent to evaluations and / or services or supports under IDEA and / or Section 504, the District may treat the student as a general education student and may apply the appropriate consequences under the discipline sections of the Code of Conduct, up to and including expulsion of the student.

Title IX Sexual Harassment

DPSCD prohibits discrimination based on sex, sexual orientation, and gender identity in all its programs and activities including admission and employment in accordance with Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, 21 U.S.C. § 1681. The District is committed to responding promptly and effectively when it has actual knowledge of any form of sex discrimination including sexual harassment.

Any person may report sex discrimination, including sexual harassment. All District employees are required to promptly report incidents of sexual harassment, observed, or learned about, to the Civil Rights and Compliance Department (CRC).

Other members of the District community and third parties are encouraged to report incidents of sexual harassment to a District employee, CRC, or the Title IX Coordinator.

Jenice Mitchell Ford, General Counsel
Civil Rights Coordinator/Title IX Coordinator
3011 W. Grand Blvd., Floor 10 Detroit, MI 48202
Phone: (313) 240-4377

Dpscd.compliance@detroitk12.org

Students have the right to Supportive Measures as appropriate when an accusation of sexual harassment has been made. Supportive Measures can be put in place before, during, and/or after any investigation. Supportive Measures are designed to ensure that students are safely able to access the District's programs and activities.

For more information on your rights under Title IX, or to review our Title IX grievance procedures, please visit our Title IX website page by clicking here.

Technology Use

The Detroit Public Schools Community District Board of Education is committed to the effective use of technology to both enhance the quality of student learning and the efficiency of District operations. Students and their parents must sign and submit a Student Technology Acceptable Use and Safety form annually. The Superintendent or their designee shall oversee the development and implementation of a written District Technology Plan ("DTP"). One (1) of the primary purposes of the DTP is to evaluate new and emerging technologies and how they will play a role in student achievement and success and/or efficient and effective District operations.

The DTP shall set forth procedures for the proper acquisition of technology. The DTP shall also provide guidance to staff and students about making safe, appropriate, and ethical use of District Technology Resources, as well as inform both staff and students about disciplinary actions that will be taken if its Technology Resources are abused in any way or used in an inappropriate, illegal, or unethical manner.

The Superintendent shall review and recommend the approval of the District Technology Plan, any changes, amendments, or revisions to the Board annually.

This policy, along with the Student and Staff Technology Acceptable Use and Safety policies, Social Media policy, Communication Device policy, and The Handbook, further govern students' and staff members' use of technology, including their personal devices. Users have no right or expectation of privacy when using District technology resources (including, but not limited to, privacy in the content of their personal files, e-mails, and records of their online activity when using the District's computer network and/or Internet connection).

Further safeguards shall be established so the Board's investment in both hardware and software achieves the benefits of technology and inhibits negative side effects. Accordingly, students shall be educated about appropriate online behavior including, but not limited to, using social media to interact with others online; interacting with other individuals in chat rooms or on blogs; and, recognizing what constitutes cyberbullying, understanding cyberbullying is a violation of Board policy, and learning appropriate responses if they experience cyberbullying.

Policy 7540 – Technology

Bullying Policy

It is the policy of the District to provide a safe and nurturing educational environment for all of its students and an equally safe and mission-driven environment for its employees. The policy is intended to protect individuals from bullying and aggressive behavior regardless of the matter or motivation for the impermissible behavior. The policy applies to all activities at any District property and to all District-sponsored activities whether on or off District property.

Bullying, cyber-bullying or other aggressive behavior toward staff, students or other members of the District community, whether by students, staff, or third parties, including Board members, parents, guests, contractors, vendors, and volunteers, is strictly prohibited. This prohibition includes written, physical, verbal, or electronic communication, including hazing, gestures, comments, threats, or actions that cause or threaten to cause bodily harm, reasonable fear for personal safety, or personal degradation. Demonstration of appropriate behavior, treating others with civility and respect, and refusal to tolerate harassment or bullying is expected of all District community members to provide positive examples for student behavior.

For additional resources https://www.stopbullying.gov/

Policy 5517.01 – Bullying and Other Aggressive Behavior

Positive Behavioral Interventions and Supports (PBIS)

To promote positive behavior, schools provide a range of prevention and intervention support services for students during and/or after school hours throughout the school year, the District supports schoolwide implementation of PBIS (Positive Behavioral Interventions and Supports).

When a student does something wrong, the school will decide how to help them. They will look at what the student did and choose the best way to help them learn and do better next time. The school will keep track of the help they give to the students, even if they have to suspend them from school for a while.

By using the right help and support, the school wants to make sure that the student behaves better in the future. This will also make the school a happier and more positive place for everyone. The help they give may include different things from a list, or sometimes a mix of different ways, depending on what the student needs.

Interventions, Supports, and Disciplinary Actions

These strategies and interventions often involve support staff, both school-based and within the broader community, and aim to engage the student's support system to ensure successful learning and consistency of interventions, and to change the conditions that contribute to the student's inappropriate or disruptive behavior.

A Infractions- Strategies and Interventions

(Classroom Strategies for use on the first two (2) instances of an A infraction, and prior to the 1st referral)

- Use signals and nonverbal cues to redirect students
- Create safe spaces within the classroom
 - Provide an area for students to work with minimal stimulus (distractions)
 - Create a safe place for a time-out
 - Create a "Calming Area" where students can go to de-escalate
- Student Engagement Activity send a student on an errand when you notice they are getting agitated
- Mindfulness Activity
- Expect Respect- Student Character Trait Lesson/Pledge Cards
- Daily/Weekly communication with home
- Social Emotional Learning Lesson
- Student Self-Monitoring
- Restorative Practices (affective statements/questions, circles, fair process, formal conferences)

- Daily progress sheet on behavior and verbal correction
- Reminders and redirection (e.g., role play)
- Establish a buddy teacher system
- Think/Reflection Sheet
- Evaluation of privileges in class Citizenship Feedback
- Alternative Seating
- Invite parents to serve as school volunteers
- Check-In Check-Out School
- PBIS Rewards
- Mentoring program/ peer mediation
- Parent Communication/Resources
- Conference
- Conflict Resolution
- Classroom Management Strategies
- Teach/Reteach norms and expectations

In addition to A Infractions strategies and interventions, B Infractions strategies and interventions can involve the school administration and aim to correct behavior by educating the student on the seriousness of the behavior with the goal of keeping the student in school.

B Infractions- Strategies and Interventions

(Support Staff and Administrative Responses)

- Structured Breaks
- Counselor Referral
- School Beautification
- Daily/Weekly Progress Report
- Self-Monitoring Plan
- Social Emotional Learning (SEL) lessons
- Expect Respect lessons
- Check In/Check Out
- Small group Counseling/SSW
- School Intervention Plan
- Referral to school counselor/social worker
- Behavioral Mental Health Referral
- Restorative Practices

- Restitution (monetary or service-based)
- Conflict resolution
- Mindfulness Activity
- Peer mediation
- Restorative Behavior Agreement
- Referral to CLT
- Mentoring programs
- Lunch Detention
- Change in schedule or class
- Conference
- Loss of privileges
- In-school/After school program

In addition to A and B Infractions, strategies, and interventions; C Infractions strategies and interventions may involve time away from the school community, because of the impact the behavior has had on the community. Removing a student from school should be the last thing we do when they misbehave, and we must have a plan to help them come back to school later.

C Infractions- Strategies and Interventions

(Referral Responses)

- Restorative Behavior Agreement
- Student Safety Plans
- Parent Communication/Resources
- Conference
- Conflict Resolution
- Restorative Practices (affective statements/questions, circles, fair process, formal conferences)
- Functional Behavioral Assessment or Behavioral Intervention Plan
- Referral to an appropriate community organization
- Referral to a credit recovery program if applicable
- Transition Planning
- Development of or revision to the PBIS plan

- Development or revision to-CLT Plan
- Referral to Counseling/SSW/or an appropriate community organization
- Refer student to Culture Leadership Team (CLT)
- Alternative educational placement or alternative educational setting
- Lunch Detention
- Functional Behavioral Assessment or Behavioral Intervention Plan
- Formal Conference
- Permanent expulsion for certain offenses, as specified in Board policy
- Alternative educational placement or alternative educational setting

Social Worker/School Counselor Strategies and Interventions

(Strategic Focus, Referrals)

- Small group session (6-8 students)
- Check In/ Check Out
- Consultation w/Stakeholders
- Collaboration w/Stakeholders
- Appraisal and Advisement
- Credit Recovery Plans
- Goal Setting
- Peer Mediation
- Restorative Circles

Tier 3 (Individual, Intensive, Crisis Response)

- Short-term Counseling/SSW
- Threat Assessment
- Suicide Risk Assessment
- Crisis Management
- 504/IEP Consultation
- Safety Plans
- Community-Based Referrals

D Infractions may involve the removal of a student from the school environment because of the impact on the student and the community. They may involve the placement of the student in a temporary placement that provides a safe environment and additional support to promote positive behavior. These interventions focus on maintaining the safety of the school community and encourage and re-engage the student in positive community participation. Removal should remain a consequence of last resort and provide a plan for reentry for the student.

Implementation of Interventions, Supports, and Disciplinary Action

When intervention or disciplinary action is appropriate, it shall always:

- Depend upon the substantiation of the allegations or charges.
- Involve a reasonable and logical relationship between the seriousness of the act and the severity of the discipline.
- Be constructive in intent.

Note:

- Take into account such factors as age, the intent of the student and their past records.
- Consider the use of positive support strategies and the use of the school's student support resources; and
- Adhere to District policies ensuring appropriate due process, especially when considering exclusions. (See Policy 5611 Due Process)

When teachers or school leaders need to help a student with their behavior, they must follow certain steps. They will write down what happened and what they did to help the student. If needed, they will try to talk to the student's parent or guardian on the phone. If they can't reach them by phone, they will send a note home with the student or put it in the mail within a day. This way, everyone knows what happened and what is being done to help the student.

If something happens at school, the student will tell their parent or guardian about it. They will also give them any notes or letters the school gives them about what happened. This way, everyone stays informed and knows what's going on.

Staff should consider student age and grade when assigning consequences. Avoid assigning any form of suspension to K-2nd grade students. Use a variety of interventions and supports outlined within the Code of Conduct. When assigning consequences for 3rd-5th grade students, use interventions and supports outlined in the Code of Conduct and limit suspensions.

Alternative Disciplinary Options

The following are some examples of how schools might handle misbehavior. If you want to know more about how your school deals with these situations, you can talk to the Principal, Assistant Principal or Dean at your school.

- **Before/After School Detention** Assignment to a designated area on campus at the beginning or end of the regular school day for a specified period of time when applicable.
- **Extracurricular Participation** Students not adhering to District and school-wide expectations will not be able to participate in after-school events.
- **Network/Internet Suspension** Certain technology-based infractions may result in a suspension of network and/or internet access. Alternative instructional materials may be provided.
- **Restitution** If the student is involved in the defacing or destruction of school property, the student/family will be held responsible for payment to replace or repair the equipment/items.
- Safety Concern Transfer—In instances where there is reasonable evidence that demonstrates a valid concern for the safety of a student, staff or others due to the student's presence at the school, contact the Code of Conduct Office to request a Safety Concern Transfer to the District's alternative campus. Safety Concern Transfers must be approved by the Code of Conduct Office and the Superintendent.
- School Beautification Assist with the clean-up of a location without the use of chemicals.
- School Bus Suspension or Revocation If a student doesn't follow the rules on the school bus, they might not be allowed to ride the bus for some time. This is called a "bus suspension." It's different from getting in trouble at school. Even if a student can't ride the bus, they still have to come to school as usual. If you have any questions about this or if it's fair, you can ask the Office of Enrollment, Family and Community Engagement for help and information.

If a student gets suspended (Out of School Suspension) or expelled from the school bus, they are not allowed to ride it. If they try to get on the bus without permission, it is like trespassing, which is against the rules. They could get in trouble and be arrested for doing that. This rule also applies to extracurricular activities, like after-school clubs or sports. It's important to follow the rules and stay out of trouble.

Additional Notes:

- If the Principal thinks something is making the school unsafe, they might have to use different rules for discipline.
 But before they do that, they need permission from the Superintendent or their designee.
- If a school administrator's own child goes to the same school where they work, someone else will handle any discipline needed for that child. This way, it's fair and no one gets special treatment.
- ❖ A student who has been suspended or expelled from school and returns to any District property without being authorized to do so is considered trespassing and is subject to appropriate escalation.

Administrative Transfer

If the options mentioned earlier are not effective, the school might decide to request that the student move to a different school building or a special program within Detroit Public Schools Community District (DPSCD). This is called an "Administrative Transfer".

The school will attempt multiple different strategies to help students remain at their current school, but sometimes, special situations may need a different approach in another place. The Principal can decide to request an administrative transfer if there are concerns about safety, bullying, or if the student has broken the rules many times without showing signs of improvement.

To initiate the request for an Administrative Transfer, the school's Principal will submit a Request for Administrative Transfer document to their Assistant Superintendent. Administrative Transfer options include: enrollment in another school setting for the remainder of the school semester, enrollment in another school setting for the remainder of the school year, or enrollment in another school setting for the remainder of the sending school building's highest grade level.

The Senior Director will review the request for Administrative Transfer, and then must approve or deny. If the request is approved by the Assistant Superintendent, it is then routed to The Code of Conduct Office (Code Office) for final decision. To ensure an equitable, fair and transparent process, all Administrative Transfers must receive final approval through the Code of Conduct Office.

A student recommended by the Principal for an administrative transfer is entitled to make up work until the student's placement is complete. The student is to remain enrolled in the sending school until the administrative transfer to the receiving school is finalized by the Student Code of Conduct Office.

A Infractions

To ensure students are provided opportunities to function in an environment conducive to learning, it is necessary that A Infractions are addressed through classroom management expectations. Therefore, **prior to the first referral**, there must be evidence of two (2) instances of the same A infraction. Schools shall ensure there is written warning documentation for each infraction, and that classroom/school rules have been clearly established. Document all strategies and interventions in PowerSchool.

The warning documentation shall include but not be limited to:

- 1. One-on-one conference with the student, parent (via phone if necessary), Guidance Counselor/Social Worker, and teacher.
- 2. One-on-one documented communication between the parent, Guidance Counselor/Social Worker, and teacher.
- 3. Occurrence 3 shall require the infraction be written as the first referral to administration accompanied by written documentation of the previous occurrences and intervention strategies attempted.

A01 FAILURE TO FOLLOW INSTRUCTIONS/INSUBORDINATION

Refusing to follow rules, providing inaccurate or false information including forgery, and not listening to teachers, staff, volunteers, partners, and parents on school property and during school events.

A03 USE OF ELECTRONIC COMMUNICATION DEVICES ("ECD") SMARTPHONES, CELLULAR PHONES, OR OTHER DEVICES THAT CAUSE DISRUPTION WHILE ON SCHOOL PROPERTY

Using phones, tablets, or games at the wrong time is not allowed. Also, using personal devices to send or get messages in a wrong way, including using artificial intelligence (AI), is not allowed. Using electronic devices to take, share, or publish inappropriate pictures or videos is not allowed. This includes fights or disruptions. It's also not okay to send or keep explicit pictures using school devices or at school events this includes forwarding, sending, airdropping, using, sharing, viewing, or possessing a sexually explicit image (specifically, images that do not depict any enrolled student activity; actions that are not transmitted as means of harassment) via text message or iMessage, email, social networking websites and/or other electronic means using school property (computers, devices, networks, or servers) on school grounds or at school-sponsored activities/events.

Please note: If the use of the electronic communication device results in chaotic disruption, sexual harassment, or includes sexually explicit images of currently enrolled students, refer to the C infractions. (See Title IX section)

A04 UNAUTHORIZED USE OF SCHOOL MATERIALS/EQUIPMENT

Using school products and materials, like computers and technology, without permission from a teacher or principal is not allowed. It's also not okay to tamper or interfere with the computers or use the internet in ways that are not allowed by the school's rules.

A05 CHEATING/ACADEMIC MISCONDUCT

Students cheating, plagiarizing, and copying another's work is cheating and academic misconduct, this includes the unauthorized and/or inappropriate use of Artificial Intelligence (AI).

A06 INAPPROPRIATE DISPLAYS OF AFFECTION

Students will not engage in voluntary inappropriate displays of affection, such as kissing and/or touching.

A08 SKIPPING/CUTTING CLASS/LOITERING

Leaving the classroom or other assigned area without permission from the adult in charge and/or leaving the classroom or school grounds during regular school hours without permission and without a parent/guardian/an emergency contact person. This includes skipping/class cutting, persistent hall walking, loitering in halls, cafeteria, gym, restrooms, or unassigned areas.

A09 DRESS CODE VIOLATION

Violating DPSCD dress code/expectations. (See page 23)

A10 DISTRACTION TO CLASSROOM/ASSIGNED LEARNING AREA

Behavior that interferes with instruction and learning, such as yelling out in class or talking out of turn, rude noises, picking on or teasing other students, pranks, and other non-physical contact behavior that detracts from the educational process. Excessive or chronic behavior that directly affects the safety of others such as throwing harmful items (not directed at or making physical contact with others), turning over a table, refusing to remain in a seat, or disrupting a safety drill

A11 ROUGH PLAY

Rough play means playing loudly and physically, but not trying to hurt anyone on purpose. It can be like horsing around, roughhousing, or touching each other a lot, but it's not meant to be mean or hurtful.

Disciplinary Actions Per Occurrence for A Infractions

IF STAFFING IS AVAILABLE, SCHOOL ADMINISTRATORS MAY REPLACE OSS WITH ISS

A Infractions	1 st Referral	2 nd Referral	3 rd Referral	4 th Referral
Prior to 1st Referral, there must be 2 documented instances of the same A infraction along w/ interventions implemented.				
A01 FAILURE TO FOLLOW INSTRUCTIONS / INSUBORDINATION	Parent ConferenceAffective Statements/ Questions	Parent Conference Small Impromptu Conference CLT Referral	Parent ConferenceRestorative Circle1 Day ISS/OSS	 Parent Conference Formal Conference Restorative Behavior Agreement 2 Days OSS
A03 USE OF ELECTRONIC COMMUNICATION DEVICES OR OTHER DEVICES THAT CAUSE DISRUPTION WHILE ON SCHOOL PROPERTY	 Parent Conference Affective Statements/ Questions Confiscation of the device and returned to the student 	 Parent Conference Confiscation of the device and return only to a parent Small Impromptu Conference 	 Parent Conference Confiscation of the device and return only to the parent Restorative Circle 1 Day ISS/OSS 	 Parent Conference Confiscation of the device and return only to a parent Restorative Practice 1 Day OSS
A04 UNAUTHORIZED USE OF SCHOOL MATERIALS/ EQUIPMENT	Parent Conference Affective Statements/ Questions	Parent Conference Small Impromptu Conference	Parent Conference Restorative Circle 1 Day ISS/OSS	 Formal Conference Restorative Behavior Agreement 2 Days OSS
A05 CHEATING/ACADEMIC MISCONDUCT	Parent Conference Affective Statements/ Questions	Parent Conference Small Impromptu Conference	Parent ConferenceRestorative Circle1 Day ISS/OSS	Formal Conference 2 Days OSS
A06 INAPPROPRIATE DISPLAYS OF AFFECTION	Parent ConferenceAffective Statements/ Questions	Parent Conference Small Impromptu Conference	 Parent Conference Restorative Circle Counseling/SSW Referral 1 Day ISS/OSS 	 Formal Conference Counseling/SSW Referral 2 Days OSS
A08 SKIPPING/CUTTING CLASS/LOITERING	Parent Conference Affective Statements/ Questions	Parent Conference Small Impromptu Conference CLT Referral	 Parent Conference Restorative Circle Restorative Behavior Agreement 1 Day ISS/OSS 	 Formal Conference Referral to PBIS or Attendance Team 2 Days OSS
A09 DRESS CODE VIOLATION	Parent Conference Affective Statements/ Questions	Parent Conference Small Impromptu Conference	Parent ConferenceRestorative CircleCounseling/SSW Referral	Restorative Behavior AgreementFormal Conference
A10 DISTRACTION TO CLASSROOM/ASSIGNED LEARNING AREA	Parent Conference Affective Statements/ Questions	Parent Conference Small Impromptu Conference Counseling/SSW Referral CLT Referral	 Parent Conference Restorative Behavior Agreement Restorative Circle 1 Day ISS/OSS 	Formal Conference2 Days OSS
A11 ROUGH PLAY	Parent Conference Affective Statements/ Questions	Parent Conference Small Impromptu Conference	Parent Conference Restorative Circe 1 Day ISS/OSS	 Formal Conference Restorative Behavior Agreement 2 Days OSS

B Infractions

Note:

Staff should consider student age and grade when assigning consequences. Avoid assigning any form of suspension to K-2 students. Use a variety of interventions and supports outlined within the Code of Conduct. When assigning consequences for 3rd-5th grade students use interventions and supports outlined in the Code of Conduct and limit suspensions.

B01 ABUSIVE LANGUAGE

Harsh, violent, profane, or derogatory language (written, spoken, or nonverbal gestures) that would demean the dignity of another. Includes, swearing, name-calling, insults, or other confrontational means of expression by the student.

B03 POSSESSION OF PROHIBITED OBJECTS

Possession of an object other than those listed in infractions D01, D02, and D03, and that has the propensity for danger, negligent harm, or disruption to the learning environment. Includes non-explosive firecrackers, mace, lighter/matches, and water guns that are non-look alike/non-replica guns.

B04 THEFT OR RECEIPT OF STOLEN PROPERTY (less than \$100)

Taking or conspiring to take without permission of the owner or custodian or receiving or possessing property known to be stolen valued at less than \$100 on school property and during school events. This includes the use or attempt to copy or use counterfeit money.

B05 EXTORTION

Obtaining money, property, or anything of value from another, against their will, by forcing an individual to either act or refrain from acting by threat of harm (e.g., harm to reputation, violence, or property damage) or coercion.

B06 PROPERTY DAMAGE, INCLUDING GRAFITTI

Intentional damage, destruction, or defacement to another person's or school property. Intentional damage, destruction or defacement to another person's or school property. Includes actions that impair the use of something, such as intentionally clogging the plumbing system, misuse of the fire extinguisher or damaging school equipment to the point where repair is necessary.

B08 INTERFERENCE WITH OR INTIMIDATION OF SCHOOL PERSONNEL

Preventing or attempting to prevent school personnel from engaging in their lawful duties through threats of violence, harassment, or intimidation.

B09 HARASSMENT

Harassment is when someone purposely scares or bullies another person at school. It can make the person feel scared or hurt, and it can even stop them from joining school activities or learning properly. Harassment can happen in different ways, like saying mean things, writing hurtful messages, using technology, or making someone feel bad emotionally. When harassment becomes really serious and makes it hard for a student to enjoy school or participate in activities, it creates a hostile environment.

This infraction is only to be used for instances specific to the basis of Sex, Race, Religion or Sexual Orientation Discrimination. For all other unkind behavior/comments see A10.

B10 GAMBLING

Participating in games of chance or skill for money or profit; requires the use of money or exchangeable goods.

B14 FIGHTING – MUTUAL COMBAT, MUTUAL ALTERCATION

A physical altercation between one or more students that does not cause severe injury.

B15 INITIATING AN ATTACK ON A STUDENT

Intentionally hurting someone else is not okay. This includes hitting, kicking, or being mean to others. It's also wrong to try to make someone sick on purpose by coughing, sneezing, or spitting on them. Using aggressive or mean words or actions to hurt someone is not allowed either. This includes threatening to fight or trying to make others fight. We should always treat each other with kindness and respect.

B16 RESPONSE TO A PHYSICAL ATTACK, THREAT OF ATTACK, OR VERBAL ALTERCATION

Self-defense means protecting yourself when someone is trying to hurt you. But hitting back after a fight is over or when there's no immediate danger is not self-defense. Also, hitting someone in response to mean words during an argument is not self-defense. Only actions to block an attack or protect yourself are considered self-defense.

B17 SEXUALLY SUGGESTIVE AND/OR DISCRIMINATORY ACTIONS

The use of words, pictures, objects, gestures, or other actions relating to sexual activity or a person's gender may cause embarrassment, discomfort, or a reluctance to participate in school activities. Students may be charged with this infraction for transmitting materials that are construed as harassment or mocking of others based on sex, gender, or sexual orientation. (See Title IX section)

B20 HAZING

Any act committed as part of a group initiation, admission, or affiliation process—regardless of consent—that humiliates, degrades, abuses, or endangers someone, often physically or psychologically.

B21 TRESPASSING

Being on any DPSCD school property without permission and/or in order to participate in a fight or other serious disturbance, including while suspended or expelled.

Disciplinary Actions Per Occurrence for B Infractions

Note:

Staff should consider student age and grade when assigning consequences. Avoid assigning any form of suspension to K-2 students. Use a variety of interventions and supports outlined within the Code of Conduct. When assigning consequences for 3rd-5th grade students use interventions and supports outlined in the Code of Conduct and limit suspensions.

IF STAFFING IS AVAILABLE, SCHOOL ADMINISTRATORS MAY REPLACE OSS WITH ISS

B Infractions	1 st Referral	2 nd Referral	3 rd Referral	4 th Referral
B01 ABUSIVE LANGUAGE	Parent Conference Small Impromptu Conference	Parent ConferenceRestorative Circle1 Day OSS	 Parent Conference Restorative Circle Counseling/SSW referral 1 Day OSS 	 Formal Conference Restorative Behavior Agreement Check In/Check Out Counseling/SSW referral 2 Days OSS
B03 POSSESSION OF PROHIBITED OBJECTS	 Parent Conference Small Impromptu Conference 	 Parent Conference Restorative Circle Restorative Behavior Agreement Check In/Check Out Counseling/SSW referral 1 Day OSS 	 Parent Conference Restorative Circle Counseling/SSW referral 1 Day OSS 	Formal ConferenceCounseling/SSW referral2 Days OSS
B04 THEFT OR RECEIPT OF STOLEN PROPERTY (Less than \$100) Staff are required to submit the Theft & Damage Report (Form 446) and inform the DPSCD Public Safety Department. Inform General Counsel and Risk Management for guidance related to restitution.	Parent Conference Small Impromptu Conference	 Parent Conference Restorative Circle Counseling/SSW referral 1 Day OSS 	 Parent Conference Restorative Circle Restorative Behavior Agreement Check In/Check Out Counseling/SSW referral 1 Day OSS 	 Formal Conference Counseling/SSW referral 2 Days OSS
B05 EXTORTION Staff are required to complete an Undesirable Incident Report (Form 63) and inform General Counsel and Risk Management for guidance related to restitution. Referral to a Behavioral Mental Health Provider/School Counselor/School Social Worker.	Parent Conference Small Impromptu Conference	 Parent Conference Restorative Circle Counseling/SSW referral 1 Day OSS 	 Parent Conference Restorative Circle Restorative Behavior Agreement Check In/Check Out Counseling/SSW referral 1 Day OSS 	 Formal Conference Counseling/SSW referral 2 Days OSS
B06 PROPERTY DAMAGE, INCLUDING GRAFITTI Staff are required to complete an Undesirable Incident Report (Form 63), inform t h e DPSCD Public Safety Department of property damage valued over \$100, and submit the Theft & Damage Report (Form 446). Inform General Counsel and Risk Management for guidance related to restitution.	 Parent Conference Small impromptu conference 1 Day OSS 	 Parent Conference Restorative Circle Counseling/SSW referral 1 Day OSS 	 Parent Conference Restorative Circle Restorative Behavior Agreement Check In/Check Out Counseling/SSW referral 2 Days OSS 	 Formal Conference Counseling/SSW referral 2 Days OSS

B08 INTERFERENCE WITH OR INTIMIDATION OF SCHOOL PERSONNEL B09 HARASSMENT Staff are required to complete the Bullying, Harassment, or Intimidation Incident & School Investigation Form (Form 73) Referral to a Behavioral Mental Health Provider/School Counselor/School Social Worker is required. Inform/Report to the Civil Rights & Compliance Department (CRC) and offer supportive measures to students impacted by harassment.	 Parent Conference Small impromptu conference 1 Day OSS Parent Conference Small impromptu conference Counseling/SSW Referral 1 Day OSS 	 Parent Conference Restorative Circle CLT Referral Counseling/SSW Referral 1 Day OSS Parent Conference Restorative Circle CLT Referral Counseling/SSW Referral 1 Day OSS 	Parent Conference Restorative Circle Counseling/SSW Referral 2 Days OSS Parent Conference Restorative Circle Restorative Behavior Agreement Check In/Check Out Counseling/SSW Referral 1 Day OSS	 Formal Conference Restorative Behavior Agreement Check In/Check Out Counseling/SSW Referral 2 Days OSS Formal Conference Counseling/SSW Referral 2 Days OSS
B10 GAMBLING	 Parent Conference Small impromptu conference 1 Day OSS 	 Parent Conference Counseling/SSW Referral Restorative Circle 	Parent Conference Restorative Circle Counseling/SSW Referral 1 Day OSS	Formal Conference Restorative Behavior Agreement Check In/Check Out Counseling/SSW Referral 2 Days OSS
B14 FIGHTING – MUTUAL COMBAT, MUTUAL ALTERCATION	 Parent Conference Restorative Circle 1-3 Days OSS 	 Parent Conference Restorative Circle Restorative Behavior Agreement Check In/Check Out Counseling/SSW Referral 3-6 Days OSS 	 Parent Conference Formal Conference Restorative Circle Counseling/SSW Referral 6-10 Days OSS 	10 Days OSS Referral to Hearing Office Counseling/SSW Referral Incident – Day Zero Investigation – Days 1- 4 Parent Conference – Days 1-4 Submit Case to Code Office – Day 5
B15 INITIATING AN ATTACK ON A STUDENT Staff are required to complete an Undesirable Incident Report (Form 63) Referral to a Behavioral Mental Health Provider/School Counselor/School Social Worker is required.	 Parent Conference Restorative Circle Counseling/SSW Referral 1-5 Days OSS 	 Parent Conference Restorative Circle Restorative Behavior Agreement Check In/Check Out Counseling/SSW Referral 6-10 Days OSS 	 Parent Conference Restorative Circle Restorative Behavior Agreement Counseling/SSW Referral 6-10 Days OSS 	10 Days OSS Referral to Hearing Office Counseling/SSW Referral Incident – Day Zero Investigation – Days 1- 4 Parent Conference – Days 1-4 Submit Case to Code Office – Day 5
B16 RESPONSE TO A PHYSICAL ATTACK, THREAT OF ATTACK, OR VERBAL ALTERCATION Referral to a Behavioral Mental Health Provider/School Counselor/School Social Worker is required.	 Parent Conference Restorative Circle Counseling/SSW Referral 	 Parent Conference Restorative Circle Restorative Behavior Agreement Check In/Check Out Counseling/SSW Referral 1 Day OSS 	 Parent Conference Restorative Circle CLT Referral Counseling/SSW Referral 1-2 Day OSS 	10 Days OSS Referral to Hearing Office Counseling/SSW Referral Incident – Day Zero Investigation – Days 1- 4 Parent Conference – Days 1-4 Submit Case to Code Office – Day 5

SEXUALLY SUGGESTIVE AND/OR DISCRIMINATORY ACTIONS Immediately report the incident to the Civil Rights & Compliance Department (CRC) and the parents/guardians of students involved If the Title IX ticket result in a "not confirmed" Title IX case from CRC, proceed with the counselor/social worker, must obtain statements from the accused students, and any students impacted students, and propriate Supportive Measures must be put in place for the accused student AND any students impacted by the behavior Agreement of days or alternative interventions. B20 HAZING Parent Conference HAZING DO NOT PROCEED WITH ANY OTHER STEPS UNTIL DIRECTED BY THE OFFICE OF CIVIL RIGHTS & COMPLIANCE (CRC) CIVIL RIGHTS & COMPLIANCE (CRC)		C l ! t. T!t.l - 10/ T! - l t			
AND/OR DISCRIMINATORY ACTIONS Immediately report the incident to the Civil Rights & Compliance Department (CRC) and the parents/guardians of students involved Administration, in consultation with the counselor/Social worker, must obtain statements from the accused student, impacted student(s), and any witnesses. Appropriate Supportive Measures must be put in place for the accused student AlD any students impacted by the behavior. No consequences may be issued prior to consultation with CRC. Multiple repeated occurrences May result in referral to Behavioral of days or alternative interventions. B20 HAZING HAZING Parent Conference • Parent Conference • Small Impromptu ConselencySchool Social Worker is required. Parent Conference • Parent Conference • Small Impromptu ConselencySchool Social Worker is required. Porfice of CIVIL RIGHTS & COMPLIANCE (CRC) If the Title IX ticket result in a "not confirmed" Title IX case from CRC, proceed with the following: • Supportive Measures • Mandatory Parent Conference • Mandatory Parent Conference • Mandatory Parent Conference • Mandatory Parent Conference • Check In/Check Out • Counseling/SSW Referral • Days ISS/OSS Parent Conference • Small Impromptu ConselencySchool Social Worker is required. Parent Conference • Small Impromptu ConselencySchool Social Worker is required. Parent Conference • Small Impromptu ConselencySchool Social Worker is required.	SEXUALLY SUGGESTIVE	Submit little IX licket	Submit Title IX Ticket	Submit Title IX Ticket	 Submit Title IX Ticket
ACTIONS Immediately report the incident to the Civil Rights & Compliance Department (CRC) and the parents/guardians of students involved Administration, in consultation with the counselor/social worker, must obtain statements from the accused student, impacted students, impacted students with the following: Appropriate Supportive Measures sust be put in place for the accused student AND any students impacted by the behavior. No consequences may be issued prior to consultation with of RC. Multiple repeated occurrences May result in referral to learning Officer for additional assignment of days or alternative interventions. B20 HAZING B20 Conference Small impromptu Conference Conference Small impromptu Conf		DO NOT PROCEED	DO NOT PROCEED WITH ANY	DO NOT PROCEED WITH	DO NOT PROCEED WITH ANY
Immediately report the incident to the Civil Rights & Compliance Department (CRC) and the parents/guardians of students Involved Administration, in consultation with the counselor/social worker, must obtain statements from the accused student, impacted by the behavior. Appropriate Supportive Measures must be put in place for the accude student AND any students impacted by the behavior. Multiple repeated occurrences May result in referral to Behavioral of days or alternative interventions. B20 HAZING B20 HAZING P Parent Conference • Parent Conference • Parent Conference • Restorative Circle • Conseling/SSW Referral • Parent Conference • Restorative Circle • Restorative Circle • Counseling/SSW Referral • DIAPY SC COMPLIANCE (CRC) (CRC) CIVIL RIGHTS & COMPLIANCE (CRC) (CRC) If the Title IX ticket result in a "not confirmed" Title IX case from CRC, proceed with the following: • Supportive Measures • Mandatory Parent Conference • Mandatory Parent Conference • Restorative Behavior Agreement • Check In/Check Out • Counseling/SSW Referral • 2-3 Days ISS/OSS B20 HAZING • Parent Conference • Small Impromptu Conference • Referral to a Behavioral Mental Health Provider/School Counselor/School Social Worker is required. • Parent Conference • Tour RIGHTS & COMPLIANCE (CRC) (CRC) If the Title IX ticket result in a "not confirmed" Title IX case from CRC, proceed with the following: • Supportive Measures • Mandatory Parent Conference • Restorative Behavior Agreement • Check In/Check Out • Restorative Circle • Restorative Circle • Restorative Circle • Restorative Circle • Restorative Behavior Agreement • 1 Day OSS • Parent Conference • Restorative Circle • Restorative	AND/OR DISCRIMINATORY	WITH ANY OTHER	OTHER STEPS UNTIL DIRECTED	ANY OTHER STEPS UNTIL	OTHER STEPS UNTIL
Immediately report the incident is decided to the Civil Rights & Compliance Department (CRC) and the Darents/guardians of students involved Administration, in consultation with the counselor/Social worker, must obtain statements from the accused student impacted students impacted students impacted student impacted student AND any students simpacted by the Dehavior. No consequences may be issued prior to consultation with CRC. Multiple repeated occurrences May result in referral to Hearing Office ror additional assignment of days or alternative interventions. B20 HAZING B20 HAZING Parent Conference Parent Conference Small Impromptu Conference Parent Conference Parent Conference Parent Conference Referral to a Behavioral Mental Health Provider/School Counselor/School Social Worker is required. Possible of the provider/School Counselor/School Social Worker is required. Possible of the accused student And Possible of the Agreement and Possible of the Agr	ACTIONS	STEPS UNTIL	BY THE OFFICE OF CIVIL	DIRECTED BY THE OFFICE OF	DIRECTED BY THE OFFICE OF
OFFICE OF CIVIL RIGHTS & COMPLIANCE (CRC) Department (CRC) and the parents/guardians of students involved Administration, in consultation with the counselor/social worker, must obtain statements from the accused student, impacted student(s), and any eitnesses. Appropriate Supportive Measures must be put in place for the accused student Almay students impacted by the behavior. No consequences may be issued prior to consultation with CRC. Multiple repeated occurrences May result in referral to Hearing Office for additional assignment of days or alternative interventions. Parent Conference Small Impromptu Conference Small Impromptu Conference Curseling/SSW Referral Day OSS Parent Conference 1 Day OSS Parent Conference 10 Days OSS Parent Conference Parent Conf	Immediately report the incident	DIRECTED BY THE	RIGHTS & COMPLIANCE (CRC)	CIVIL RIGHTS & COMPLIANCE	CIVIL RIGHTS & COMPLIANCE
Department (CRC) and the parents/guardians of students involved Administration, in consultation with the counselor/social worker, must obtain statements from the accused student, impacted student(s), and any witnesses. If the Title IX ticket result in a "not confirmed" Title IX case from CRC, proceed with the following: Supportive Measures must be put in place for the accused student AND any students impacted by the behavior. No consequences may be issued prior to consultation with CRC. Multiple repeated occurrences May result in referral to Hearing Office for additional assignment of days or alternative interventions. Parent Conference Pays 1-4 Days ISS/OSS Parent Conference Parent Conference Conference Parent C		OFFICE OF CIVIL		(CRC)	(CRC)
involved Administration, in consultation with the counselor/social worker, must obtain statements from the accused student, impacted student(s), and any witnesses. Appropriate Supportive Measures must be put in place for the accused student AND any students impacted by the behavior. No consequences may be issued prior to consultation with CRC. Multiple repeated occurrences May result in referral to Hearing Officer for additional assignment of days or alternative interventions. B20 HAZING Parent Conference Say passions of a path and the Health Provider/School Counselor/School Social Worker is required. If the Title IX ticket result in a "not confirmed" Title IX case from CRC, proceed with the following: Supportive Measures of Conference Restorative Behavior Agreement Conference Restorative Behavior Agreement Check In/Check Out Counseling/SSW Referral Counseling/SSW Referral Counseling/SSW Referral Counseling/SSW Referral Parent Conference Restorative Circle Restorative Circle Restorative Conference Restorative Circle Restorative		RIGHTS &	If the Title IX ticket result in a		
Involved Administration, in consultation with the counselor/social worker, must obtain statements from the accused student, impacted student(s), and any witnesses. Appropriate Supportive Measures must be put in place for the accused student AND any students impacted by the behavior. No consequences may be issued prior to consultation with CRC. Multiple repeated occurrences May result in referral to Hearing officer for additional assignment of days or alternative interventions. B20 HAZING Parent Conference Parent Conference Supportive Measures Mandatory Parent Conference Restorative Behavior Agreement Counseling/SSW Referral Counseling/SSW Referral Counseling/SSW Referral Parent Conference Restorative Behavior Agreement Counseling/SSW Referral Counseling/SSW Referral Days ISS/OSS Parent Conference Restorative Circle Counseling/SSW Referral Parent Conference Restorative Days 1-4 Parent Conference Mandatory Parent Conference Restorative Behavior Agreement Counseling/SSW Referral Counseling/SSW Referral Days OSS Parent Conference Restorative Circle Cunseling/SSW Referral Parent Conference Restorative Circle Cunseling/SSW Referral Parent Conference Restorative Circle Restorative Circle Cunseling/SSW Referral Parent Conference Restorative Dehavior Agreement Conference Parent Conference Restorative Behavior Agreement Counseling/SSW Referral Parent Conference Restorative Circle Restorative Circle Restorative Circle Restorative Circle Restorative Circle Restorative Circle Restorative Behavior Agreement Days OSS Referral to Hearing Office Counseling/SSW Referral Incident – Day Zero Incident – Day Sero Referral to Hearing Office Referral to Hearing Office Restorative Behavior Agreement Referral to Behavioral Mental Referral to Behavioral Mental Referral to Behavioral Mental Referral to Behavioral Mental Referral to Behavior Agreement Days OSS Referral to Hearing Office Restorative Behavior Referral to Behavior Restorative Behavior Referral to Behavior Referral to Behavior Re		COMPLIANCE (CRC)	"not confirmed" Title IX case	If the Title IX ticket result in a	10 Days OSS
Administration, in consultation with the counselor/Social worker, must obtain statements from the accused student(s), and any witnesses. Supportive Measures must be put in place for the accused student AND any students impacted by the behavior. No consequences may be issued prior to consultation with CRC. Multiple repeated occurrences May result in referral to Hearing Officer for additional assignment of days or alternative interventions. B20	involved	, ,	from CRC, proceed with the	"not confirmed" Title IX case	•
total statements from the accused student, impacted students, impacted student, impacted student, impacted student, impacted student, impacted student AND any students impacted by the behavior. Appropriate Supportive Measures must be put in place for the accused student AND any students impacted by the behavior. No consequences may be issued prior to consultation with CRC. Multiple repeated occurrences May result in referral to Hearing Officer for additional assignment of days or alternative interventions. B20 HAZING Parent Conference Parent Conference Small Impromptu Conference Parent Conference Parent Conference Restorative Behavior Agreement Consequences may be issued prior to consultation with CRC. Multiple repeated occurrences May result in referral to Hearing Officer for additional assignment of days or alternative interventions. B20 HAZING Parent Conference Small Impromptu Conference Parent Conference Parent Conference Restorative Behavior Agreement Counseling/SSW Referral Parent Conference Restorative Behavior Agreement Counseling/SSW Referral Parent Conference Restorative Behavior Agreement Counseling/SSW Referral Parent Conference Restorative Behavior Agreement Conference Restorative Behavior Agreement Counseling/SSW Referral Parent Conference Restorative Behavior Agreement Coun	Administration, in consultation with	If the Title IX ticket result	following:	from CRC, proceed with the	_
student, impacted student(s), and any witnesses. Appropriate Supportive Measures must be put in place for the accused student AND any students impacted by the behavior. No consequences may be issued prior to consultation with CRC. Multiple repeated occurrences May result in referral to Hearing Officer for additional assignment of days or alternative interventions. B20 HAZING Parent Conference Small Impromptu Conference Parent Conference Parent Conference Restorative Behavior Agreement Conference Restorative Behavior Counseling/SSW Referral Counseling/SSW Referral Counseling/SSW Referral Parent Conference Restorative Behavior Agreement Conference Restorative Behavior Counseling/SSW Referral Agreement Conference Restorative Behavior Counseling/SSW Referral Agreement Conference Restorative Behavior Agreement Conderence Restorative Behavior Counseling/SSW Referral Parent Conference Restorative Behavior Agreement Counseling/SSW Referral Parent Conference Restorative Behavior Agreement Counseling/SSW Referral Parent Conference Restorative Behavior Counseling/SSW Referral Parent Conference Restorative Behavior Counseling/SSW Referral Parent Conference Restorative Behavior Parent Conference Restorati		in a "not confirmed"	 Supportive Measures 	following:	Counseling/33vv Referral
witnesses. Appropriate Supportive Measures must be put in place for the accused student AND any students impacted by the behavior. No consequences may be issued prior to consultation with CRC. Multiple repeated occurrences May result in referral to Hearing Officer for additional assignment of days or alternative interventions. BZO HAZING Parent Conference Small Impromptu Conference Parent Conference Restorative Behavior Agreement Conference Restorative Behavior Agreement Conference Restorative Behavior Agreement Conference Restorative Behavior Agreement Conduction of Check In/Check Out Counseling/SSW Referral Counseling/SSW Referral Counseling/SSW Referral Agreement Counseling/SSW Referral Agreement Conference Restorative Behavior Agreement Conference Restorative Behavior Agreement Counseling/SSW Referral Agreement Conference Restorative Behavior Agreement Conductive Behavior Agreement Counseling/SSW Referral Agreement Counseling/SSW Referral Parent Conference Restorative Behavior Agreement Counseling/SSW Referral Parent Conference Restorative Behavior Agreement Conductive Behavior Agreement Conductive Behavior Agreement Counseling/SSW Referral Parent Conference Restorative Behavior Parent Conference Restorative Behavior Agreement Counseling/SSW Referral Parent Conference Restorative Behavior Agreement Parent Conference Restorative Behavior Agreement Parent Conference Restorative Behavior Parent Conference Restorative Behavior Referral Parent Conference Restorative Be		Title IX case from CRC,	 Mandatory Parent 	1	Ladded Bar Zon
Appropriate Supportive Measures must be put in place for the accused student AND any students impacted by the behavior. No consequences may be issued prior to consultation with CRC. Multiple repeated occurrences May result in referral to Hearing Officer for additional assignment of days or alternative interventions. B20 HAZING Parent Conference Parent Conference Small Impromptu Conference Small Impromptu Conference Small Impromptu Conseling/SSW Referral Description Parent Conference Restorative Behavior Agreement Check In/Check Out Counseling/SSW Referral Counseling/SSW Referral Description Parent Conference Restorative Behavior Agreement Check In/Check Out Counseling/SSW Referral Counseling/SSW Referral Description Parent Conference Restorative Behavior Agreement Check In/Check Out Counseling/SSW Referral Description Counseling/SSW Referral Description Parent Conference Restorative Behavior Agreement Description Counseling/SSW Referral Description Parent Conference Restorative Behavior Counseling/SSW Referral Description Parent Conference Restorative Behavior Agreement Description Counseling/SSW Referral Description Parent Conference Restorative Behavior Counseling/SSW Referral Description Descriptio		proceed with the	Conference	 Mandatory Parent 	•
Supportive Measures must be put in place for the accused student AND any students impacted by the behavior. No consequences may be issued prior to consultation with CRC. Multiple repeated occurrences May result in referral to Hearing Officer for additional assignment of days or alternative interventions. B20 HAZING Parent Conference Small Impromptu Conference Small Impromptu Conference Small Impromptu Conference The counseling/SSW Referral The counseling/SSW Referral The counselor/School Social Worker is required. Support verificative Behavior Agreement Check In/Check Out Counseling/SSW Referral Check In/Check Out Counseling/SSW Referral The counseling/SSW Refe		following:	 Restorative Behavior 	Conference	
student AND any students impacted by the behavior. No consequences may be issued prior to consultation with CRC. Multiple repeated occurrences May result in referral to Hearing Officer for additional assignment of days or alternative interventions. B20 HAZING Referral Parent Conference Small Impromptu Conference Conference Small Impromptu Conference Parent Conference Small Impromptu Conference The parent Conference Small Impromptu Conference Parent Conference The parent Conference Small Impromptu Conference The parent Conference Small Impromptu Conference Small Impromptu Conference The parent Conference Small Impromptu Conference The parent Conference The parent Conference Small Impromptu Conference The parent Conference Th		 Supportive Measures 	Agreement	Restorative Behavior	•
by the behavior. No consequences may be issued prior to consultation with CRC. Multiple repeated occurrences May result in referral to Hearing Officer for additional assignment of days or alternative interventions. B20 HAZING Referral to a Behavioral Mental Health Provider/School Counselor/School Social Worker is required. Referral to a Behavioral Mental Health Provider/School Counselor/School Social Worker is required. Refer to Whole Child Support Counseling/SSW Referral Counseling/SSW Referral Parent Conference Refer to Whole Child Support Counseling/SSW Referral Parent Conference Refer to Whole Child Support Counseling/SSW Referral Parent Conference Refer to Whole Child Support Counseling/SSW Referral Parent Conference Restorative Device Counseling/SSW Referral Referral to a Behavioral Mental Health Provider/School Social Worker is required. Referral to a Behavioral Mortal Referral to a Behavioral Mental Referral to a Behavioral Mortal Parent Conference Refer to Whole Child Support Counseling/SSW Referral Parent Conference Parent Conference Restorative Circle Restorative Device CLT Referral Counseling/SSW Referral Parent Conference Referral to Hearing Office Restorative Device Curse Restorative Circle Restorative Behavior Referral to Hearing Office Restorative Circle Restorative Device Curse Restorative Device Curse Restorative Device Curse Restorative Circle Restorative Device Curse Restorative Device C	·	 Mandatory Parent 	Check In/Check Out	Agreement	Submit Case to Code Office—Day 3
No consequences may be issued prior to consultation with CRC. Multiple repeated occurrences May result in referral to Hearing Officer for additional assignment of days or alternative interventions. B20 HAZING Referral Parent Conference Small Impromptu Conference Referral to a Behavioral Mental Health Provider/School Counselor/School Social Worker is required. Parent Conference The parent Conference of Counseling/SSW Referral Parent Conference Referral to a Behavioral Mental Health Provider/School Social Worker is required. Parent Conference Referral to a Behavioral Mental Health Provider/School Social Worker is required. Parent Conference Referral to a Behavioral Mental Health Provider/School Social Worker is required. Parent Conference Restorative Behavior Counseling/SSW Referral Parent Conference Referral Parent Conference Referral Parent Conference Referral Parent Conference Restorative Circle Restorative Circle Restorative Behavior Agreement Counseling/SSW Referral Parent Conference Referral Day OSS Parent Conference Restorative Circle Restorative Behavior Agreement Counseling/SSW Referral Day OSS Referral Day OSS Referral Day OSS	, , ,	Conference	Refer to Whole Child	Check In/Check Out	
to consultation with CRC. Multiple repeated occurrences May result in referral to Hearing Officer for additional assignment of days or alternative interventions. B20 HAZING Referral to a Behavioral Mental Health Provider/School Counselor/School Social Worker is required. Parent Conference The Counseling SSW Referral Parent Conference Referral to a Behavioral Mental Health Provider/School Counselor/School Social Worker is required. Agreement Parent Conference Referral to a Behavioral Mental Counselor/School Social Worker is required. Parent Conference Parent Conference Restorative Circle Restorative Circle CLT Referral Counseling/SSW Referral Day OSS Parent Conference Restorative Circle Restorative Behavior Agreement Check In/Check Out Counseling/SSW Referral Day OSS Incident – Day Zero Investigation – Days 1-4 Parent Conference – Days 1-4	,	Restorative Behavior	Support	Counseling/SSW Referral	
Multiple repeated occurrences May result in referral to Hearing Officer for additional assignment of days or alternative interventions. B20 HAZING Parent Conference Small Impromptu Conference Referral to a Behavioral Mental Health Provider/School Counselor/School Social Worker is required. Parent Conference Officer for additional assignment of days or alternative interventions. Parent Conference Parent Conference Restorative Circle CLT Referral Counseling/SSW Referral Counseling/SSW Referral Day OSS Parent Conference Restorative Circle CLT Referral Counseling/SSW Referral Counseling/SSW Referral Day OSS Incident – Day Zero Investigation – Days 1-4 Parent Conference — Days 1-4		Agreement	 Counseling/SSW Referral 	3-5 Days OSS	
May result in referral to Hearing Officer for additional assignment of days or alternative interventions. B20 HAZING Referral Parent Conference Small Impromptu Conference Referral to a Behavioral Mental Health Provider/School Counselor/School Social Worker is required. Parent Conference Referral Parent Conference Restorative Circle CLT Referral Counseling/SSW Referral Referral Restorative Circle Restorative Behavior Agreement Counseling/SSW Referral Referral Counseling/SSW Referral Day OSS Parent Conference Restorative Circle Restorative Behavior Agreement Check In/Check Out Counseling/SSW Referral Day Zero Investigation – Days 1-4 Parent Conference Referral to Hearing Office	to consultation with CRC.	Check In/Check Out	• 3-4 Days ISS/OSS	·	
May result in referral to Hearing Officer for additional assignment of days or alternative interventions. B20 HAZING Parent Conference Small Impromptu Conference • Small Impromptu Conference • CLT Referral • Day OSS • Parent Conference • Restorative Circle • CLT Referral • Counseling/SSW Referral • Toay OSS • Parent Conference • Restorative Circle • Restorative Behavior Agreement • Check In/Check Out • Counseling/SSW Referral • Day OSS Incident – Day Zero Investigation – Days 1-4 Parent Conference • Referral to Hearing Office • Restorative Circle • Restorative Behavior Agreement • Check In/Check Out • Counseling/SSW Referral • Day OSS		 Counseling/SSW 			
• 2-3 Days ISS/OSS • Parent Conference HAZING • Parent Conference • Small Impromptu Conference Referral to a Behavioral Mental Health Provider/School Counselor/School Social Worker is required. • Parent Conference • Restorative Circle • CLT Referral • Counseling/SSW Referral • 1 Day OSS • Parent Conference • Restorative Circle • Restorative Behavior Agreement • Check In/Check Out • Counseling/SSW Referral • 1 Day OSS • Incident – Day Zero Investigation – Days 1-4 Parent Conference • Referral to Hearing Office • Counseling/SSW Referral • 2 Days OSS		<u>o</u> .			
B20 HAZING Parent Conference Small Impromptu Conference Referral to a Behavioral Mental Health Provider/School Counselor/School Social Worker is required. Parent Conference Parent Conference Restorative Circle CLT Referral Counseling/SSW Referral Day OSS Parent Conference Restorative Circle Restorative Behavior Agreement Check In/Check Out Counseling/SSW Referral Day SSW Referral Day Sos	-	2-3 Days ISS/OSS			
 Small Impromptu Conference Referral to a Behavioral Mental Health Provider/School Counselor/School Social Worker is required. Small Impromptu Conference Restorative Circle CLT Referral Counseling/SSW Referral Day OSS Restorative Circle Restorative Circle Restorative Behavior Agreement Check In/Check Out Counseling/SSW Referral Days OSS Incident – Day Zero Investigation – Days 1-4 Parent Conference – Days 1-4 	of days of alternative interventions.	,,			
Conference Referral to a Behavioral Mental Health Provider/School Counselor/School Social Worker is required. Conference Conference Conference Counseling/SSW Referral Counseling/SSW Referral Day OSS Restorative Behavior Agreement Check In/Check Out Counseling/SSW Referral Counseling/SSW Referral Day Zero Investigation – Days 1-4 Parent Conference — Days 1-4	B20		 Parent Conference 	 Parent Conference 	• 10 Days OSS
Referral to a Behavioral Mental Health Provider/School Counselor/School Social Worker is required. • Counseling/SSW Referral • 1 Day OSS • Counseling/SSW Referral • Check In/Check Out • Counseling/SSW Referral • Counseling/SSW Referral • Counseling/SSW Referral • 2 Days OSS • Counseling/SSW Referral • 2 Days OSS	HAZING	 Small Impromptu 	 Restorative Circle 	 Restorative Circle 	 Referral to Hearing Office
Referral to a Behavioral Mental Health Provider/School Counselor/School Social Worker is required. • Counseling/SSW Referral • 1 Day OSS • Check In/Check Out • Check In/Check Out Incident – Day Zero Investigation – Days 1- 4 Parent Conference – Days 1-4		Conference	CLT Referral	Restorative Behavior	Counseling/SSW Referral
Counselor/School Social Worker is required. • 1 Day OSS • Check In/Check Out Incident – Day Zero Investigation – Days 1-4 Parent Conference – Days 1-4			 Counseling/SSW Referral 	Agreement	<u>G</u>
required. • Counseling/SSW Referral • 2 Days OSS Investigation – Days 1- 4 Parent Conference – Days 1-4			<u> </u>	Check In/Check Out	Incident – Dav Zero
2 Days OSS Parent Conference – Days 1-4	,		,		•
	required.			, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	
Submit Case to Code Office — Day 5				- 2 Days 033	Submit Case to Code Office – Day 5
B21 • Parent Conference • Parent Conference • Parent Conference	R21	Parent Conference	Parent Conference	Parent Conference	Parent Conference
	TRESP ASSING	·			Contact DPSCD Public Safety
If suspended or suspended Questions Conference • Restorative Behavior • Counseling/SSW Referral	·	Questions			Counseling/SSW Reterral
pending referral to the Code Office, a student will not return to Perferral Office, a student will not return to			O,	•	
the school premises without	I I			I	
permission from the proper • 1 Day OSS • Counseling/SSW Referral	•		1 Day OSS	Counseling/SSW Referral	
school authorities. • 2 Days OSS	school authorities.			2 Days OSS	
Michigan School Safety law	Michigan School Safety law				
requires trespassing incidents tobe					
immediately reported to the DPSCD	requires trespassing incidents to be				
Public Safety Department. Staff	immediately reported to the DPSCD				
are required to complete an Undesirable Incident Report (Form 63)	immediately reported to the DPSCD Public Safety Department. Staff				
ondesirable inductive port (control)	immediately reported to the DPSCD Public Safety Department. Staff are required to complete an				

C Infractions

Note:

Staff should consider student age and grade when assigning consequences. Avoid assigning any form of suspension to K-2 students. Use a variety of interventions and supports outlined within the Code of Conduct. When assigning consequences for 3rd – 5th grade students use interventions and supports outlined in the Code of Conduct and limit suspensions.

CO3 THEFT OR RECEIPT OF STOLEN PROPERTY

Taking or conspiring to take someone else's property without permission of the owner or custodian or receiving or possessing property known to be stolen valued at more than \$100 on school property and during school events. This includes the use or attempt to copy or use counterfeit money.

C04 SEXUAL MISCONDUCT

A student shall not engage in intimate physical sexual contact with another person, including, but not limited to consensual sexual intercourse, oral sex, or intentional touching of the other person's genitals, groin, inner thigh, buttock or breast, or the clothing covering those areas, other inappropriate behavior of a sexual nature including displays of sexual parts. A student shall not participate in sexting, which includes creating, sharing, Airdrop/Nearby Share via cellular devices, or possessing images of a minor (anyone under 18 years of age) engaged in a sexual act. A "sexual act" includes sexual intercourse, masturbation, or a lewd exhibition of nudity. (See Title IX section)

CO7 BULLYING/CYBERBULLYING

Generally, involves repeatedly using power in an intentional manner, to inflict psychological distress or physical harm that adversely affects another's ability to participate in or benefit from a school's education or extracurricular programs. (See Bullying Policy)

Engaging in written, verbal, or physical conduct intended to place one or more students in fear of harm or cause substantial emotional distress by directly or indirectly doing the following:

- Substantially interfering with educational opportunities;
- Adversely affecting the ability of a student(s) to participate in or benefit from school programs;
- Having an actual and substantial detrimental effect on a student's physical or mental health; or
- Causing a substantial disruption of the orderly operation of the school.

Cyberbullying is engaging in any electronic communication (i.e., internet, smartphone, wireless handheld device, etc.), network, or technology, including social media (e.g., Facebook, Twitter, Snapchat, Instagram, etc.), to bully a student, educator, employee, parent/guardian, contractor, agent, or volunteer.

Relational aggression is a type of bullying in which the student's interaction with peers involves covert bullying or manipulative behavior, causing harm within relationships. Examples are social exclusion of a peer from their group, threatening to stop talking to a friend with silent treatment, or gossiping and spreading rumors at school or online. This includes hate speech.

This infraction is only to be used for instances specific to the basis of Sex, Race, Religion or Sexual Orientation Discrimination. For all other unkind behavior/comments see A10.

CO9 USE OR POSSESSION OF DRUG PARAPHERNALIA OR CONTROLLED SUBSTANCES

Using or having drugs or things related to drugs at school is not allowed. This includes illegal drugs, over-the-counter medicines, medicine not prescribed for you, and marijuana or CBD in any form. Vape pens, edibles, laced food products, and any items for using drugs are also not allowed. Drug paraphernalia means any tools or items designed for using drugs.

Controlled substance means any drug, or substance, that is delineated in Schedules 1 through 5 of Part 72 of the Michigan Public Health Code, being MCL 333.7201 through MCL 333.7231 Drug generally means, a substance that is recognized as a drug by official Pharmacopoeia or national formulary; a substance that is intended for use in the diagnosis, cure, mitigation, treatment, or prevention of disease; a substance, other than food, that is intended to affect the structure or function of the body or; a substance that is intended for use as a component of any substance specified within this definition.

** The odor/smell of suspected drugs is not a violation of a CO9 Infraction.

C10 GANG-RELATED ACTIVITY

Gangs are defined as an ongoing organization, association, or group of 2 or more people, other than a nonprofit organization, that identifies itself by all of the following:

- A unifying mark, manner, protocol, or method of expressing membership, including a common name, sign or symbol, means of recognition, geographical or territorial sites, or boundary or location.
- An established leadership or command structure
- Defined membership criteria Gang activity typically refers to a group of two or more individuals that associate
 periodically as an ongoing criminal group, with an overt or covert command structure, to regularly conspire and/or
 commit illegal and disruptive acts within the school community.

C11 ADMITTANCE OF UNAUTHORIZED INDIVIDUALS INTO SCHOOL BUILDINGS

Knowingly and intentionally admitting or allowing an unauthorized person(s) or student(s) into any District building without express permission from the proper school authorities, through any unopened door or unmonitored point of entry, in a manner that breaches any method of established security.

C12 FALSE ALARM

Intentionally activating a fire alarm system in any school building and/or reporting a fire, bomb, or other dangerous lockdown situation when none exists or without valid cause.

C14 SEXUAL HARASSMENT

Any unwelcome conduct determined by a reasonable person to be so severe, pervasive, and objectively offensive that it effectively denies a person equal access to the school's educational program or activity; or Any conduct that is determined to be Sexual Harassment under Title IX (see appendix for comprehensive definition). (See Title IX section)

*This definition can include conduct that occurs electronically or over social media if it impacts the learning environment.

C15 VERBAL ASSAULT

Threatening or aggressive language or gestures directed toward staff and/or students (verbal, cyber, or written behavior) that threatens or intends to cause actual harm to staff and/or students.

C16 INCITING OR PARTICIPATING IN MASS DISTURBANCE

Causing a big disruption at school that makes it hard for others to learn and can be unsafe. It includes when a group of students attack another student, big fights that need lots of adults to stop, or using phones to send mean messages and make things chaotic. It's also not allowed to block or delay school transportation or scare students while they're going to or coming from school that requires the immediate presence of multiple authorities (DPSCD Public Safety Department, District leaders, or other crisis intervention support).

C17 USE OR POSSESSION OF ALCOHOL

Drinking (witness or recorded) of alcoholic liquor/beverages, whether or not medicated. This includes regular alcoholic drinks or drinks made with cough syrup. Just having alcohol is considered as having it. But if the alcohol is gone or used before coming to school, and there's no proof of it, you won't get in trouble for the C17 violation. Also, just smelling like alcohol, without any other signs of being drunk or using it, won't get you in trouble for an illegal use or possession violation.

C18 USE OR POSSESSION OF INHALANTS

Using or having certain chemicals or substances that can make you feel high or cause a mind-altering effect. This includes sniffing or inhaling them in a way that they are not meant to be used.

C19 USE OR POSSESSION OF TOBACCO AND HOOKAH PRODUCTS

Using or having cigarettes, e-cigarettes, hookah pipes, or tobacco products at school is not allowed. If someone smells like tobacco but there's no other sign they were using it, they won't get in trouble for an illegal use or possession violation.

C20 UNINTENTIONAL PHYSICAL CONTACT WITH SCHOOL STAFF

Unintentionally striking a staff member, volunteer, or contractor who is intervening in a fight or other disruptive activity.

Disciplinary Actions Per Occurrence for C Infraction

Note:

Staff should consider student age and grade when assigning consequences. Avoid assigning any form of suspension to K-2 students. Use a variety of interventions and supports outlined within the Code of Conduct. When assigning consequences for 3rd-5th grade students use interventions and supports outlined in the Code of Conduct and limit suspensions.

IF STAFFING IS AVAILABLE. SCHOOL ADMINISTRATORS MAY REPLACE OSS WITH ISS

IF STAFFING IS AVAILABLE, SCHOOL ADMINISTRATORS MAY REPLACE OSS WITH ISS						
C Infractions	1 st Referral	2 nd Referral	3 rd Referral	4 th Referral		
CO3 THEFT OR RECEIPT OF STOLEN PROPERTY Required reporting to DPSCD Public Safety Department. Staff are required to complete an Undesirable Incident Report (Form 63) and a Theft and Damage Report (Form 446). Inform General Counsel and Risk Management for guidance related to restitution.	 Parent Conference Small Impromptu Conference Restorative Behavior Agreement Check In/Check Out 2 Days OSS 	 Parent Conference Small Impromptu Conference Restorative Behavior Agreement Check In/Check Out Counseling/SSW Referral 3-4 Days OSS 	 Parent Conference Restorative Circle 1 Day OSS Formal Conference Restorative Behavior Check In/Check Out Counseling/SSW Refer 2 Days OSS 			
CO4 SEXUAL MISCONDUCT Immediately report the incident to the Civil Rights & Compliance Department (CRC) and the parents/guardians of students involved Administration, in consultation with the counselor/social worker, must obtain statements from the accused student, impacted student(s), and any witnesses. Appropriate Supportive Measures must be put in place for the accused student AND any students impacted by the behavior. No consequences may be issued prior to consultation with CRC. Multiple repeated occurrences May result in referral to Hearing Officer for additional assignment of days or alternative intervention	Submit Title IX Ticket DO NOT PROCEED WITH ANY OTHER STEPS UNTIL DIRECTED BY THE OFFICE OF CIVIL RIGHTS & COMPLIANCE (CRC) If the Title IX ticket result in a "not confirmed" Title IX case from CRC, proceed with the following: Supportive Measures Mandatory Parent Conference Restorative Behavior Agreement Check In/Check Out Counseling/SSW Referral 3-5 Days ISS/OSS	Submit Title IX Ticket DO NOT PROCEED WITH ANY OTHER STEPS UNTIL DIRECTED BY THE OFFICE OF CIVIL RIGHTS & COMPLIANCE (CRC) If the Title IX ticket result in a "not confirmed" Title IX case from CRC, proceed with the following: Supportive Measures Mandatory Parent Conference Restorative Behavior Agreement Check In/Check Out Counseling/SSW Referral 3-5 Days ISS/OSS	BY THE OFFICE OF CIVIL RI	pport		
CO7 BULLYING/CYBERBULLYING Staff are required to complete the Bullying, Harassment, or Intimidation Incident & School Investigation Form (Form 73) Those bullied and those suspected of bullying will be automatically referred to a Behavioral Mental Health Provider/School Social Worker/Counseling and the parent/guardian will be notified. Implement Supportive Measures for any impacted students. CO9 USE OR POSSESSION OF DRUG PARAPHERNALIA OR CONTROLLED SUBSTANCES School officials are required to report the	Parent Conference Small Impromptu Conference Restorative Behavior Agreement Check In/Check Out Counseling / SSW Referral 1 Day OSS Parent Conference Small Impromptu Conference Restorative Behavior Agreement	Parent Conference Small Impromptu Conference Restorative Behavior Agreement Check In/Check Out Counseling / SSW Referral Days OSS Parent Conference Restorative Circle Restorative Behavior Agreement Check In/Check Out	Parent Conference Restorative Circle Restorative Behavior Agreement Check In/Check Out Counseling / SSW Referral Jays OSS Parent Conference Restorative Circle Restorative Behavior Agreement Check In/Check Out	10 Days OSS Referral to Hearing Office Counseling/SSW Referral Incident – Day Zero Investigation – Days 1-4 Parent Conference – Days 1-4 Submit Case to Code Office – Day 5 10 Days OSS Referral to Hearing Office Counseling/SSW Referral Incident – Day Zero		
incident to DPSCD Public Safety Department and complete an Undesirable Incident Report (Form 63). School staff is required to refer students to the appropriate Behavioral Mental Health Provider/School Counselor/School Social Worker for substance abuse Counseling. And the parent/guardian will be notified.	 Check In/Check Out Counseling / SSW Referral 1-3 Days OSS 	Counseling / SSW Referral 1-3 Days OSS	Counseling / SSW Referral 3-5 Days OSS	Parent Conference – Days 1-4 Submit Case to Code Office – Day 5		

C10 GANG-RELATED ACTIVITY

School officials are required to report the incident to the DPSCD Public Safety Department and complete an Undesirable Incident Report (Form 63).

- Parent Conference
- Restorative Circle
- Restorative Behavior Agreement
- Check In/Check Out
- Counseling / SSW Referral
- 5 Days OSS

Counseling/SSW Referral

- Formal Conference
- Restorative Behavior Agreement
- Check In/Check Out
- 7 Days OSS

OR

The Principal may at their discretion refer the student to Hearing Office and Counseling/SSW Referral

Incident – Day Zero
Investigation Days 1-4
Parent Conference Days 1-4
Submit Case to Code Office – Day 5

C11 ADMITTANCE OF UNAUTHORIZED INDIVIDUALS IN SCHOOL BUILDINGS

School officials are required to report the incident to the DPSCD Public Safety Department and complete an Undesirable Incident Report (Form 63) Knowingly and intentionally admitting or allowing an unauthorized person(s) or student into any school building without expressed permission from the proper school authorities, through any unopened door or unmonitored point of entry, in a manner that breaches any method of established security.

This may result in an administrative transfer.

Refer to the Code Office for a possible Administrative Transfer

C12 FALSE ALARM

School officials are required to report the incident to the DPSCD Public Safety Department and complete an Undesirable Incident Report (Form 63) • 10 Days OSS

- Referral to Hearing Office
- Counseling/SSW Referral

Incident – Day Zero
Investigation – Days 1-4
Parent Conference – Days 1-4
Submit Case to Code Office – Day 5

C14 SEXUAL HARASSMENT

Immediately report the incident to the Civil Rights & Compliance Department (CRC) and the parents/guardians of students involved

Administration, in consultation with the counselor/social worker, must obtain statements from the accused student, impacted student(s), and any witnesses.

Appropriate Supportive Measures must be put in place for the accused student AND any students impacted by the behavior.

No consequences may be issued prior to consultation with CRC.

Multiple repeated occurrences may result in referral to Hearing Officer for additional assignment of days or alternative intervention Submit Title IX Ticket
DO NOT PROCEED WITH ANY OTHER
STEPS UNTIL DIRECTED BY THE
OFFICE OF CIVIL RIGHTS &
COMPLIANCE (CRC)

If the Title IX ticket result in a "not confirmed" Title IX case from CRC, proceed with the following:

- Supportive Measures
- Mandatory Parent Conference
- Restorative Behavior Agreement
- Check In/Check Out
- Counseling/SSW Referral
- 2-3 Days ISS/OSS

Submit Title IX Ticket
DO NOT PROCEED WITH ANY OTHER
STEPS UNTIL DIRECTED BY THE
OFFICE OF CIVIL RIGHTS &
COMPLIANCE (CRC)

If the Title IX ticket result in a "not confirmed" Title IX case from CRC, proceed with the following:

- Supportive Measures
- Mandatory Parent Conference
- Restorative Behavior Agreement
- Check In/Check Out
- Refer to Whole Child Support
- 3-4 Days ISS/OSS

Submit Title IX Ticket
DO NOT PROCEED WITH ANY OTHER
STEPS UNTIL DIRECTED BY THE OFFICE
OF CIVIL RIGHTS & COMPLIANCE (CRC)

If the Title IX ticket result in a "not confirmed" Title IX case from CRC, proceed with the following:

- Supportive Measures
- Mandatory Parent Conference
- Restorative Behavior Agreement
- Check In/Check Out
- Refer to Whole Child Support
- 3-5 Days ISS/OSS

C15 VERBAL ASSAULT

Staff are required to complete an Undesirable Incident Report (Form 63), report to DPSCD Public Safety Department and conduct a Threat Assessment.

- Parent Conference
- Restorative Circle
- Restorative Behavior Agreement
- Check In/Check Out
- Counseling / SSW Referral
- 5 Days OSS

- Counseling/SSW Referral
- Restorative Behavior Agreement
- · Check In/Check Out
- Formal Conference
- 7 Days OSS

OR

The principal may at their discretion refer the student to the Hearing Office and Counseling/SSW Referral

Incident – Day Zero Investigation – Days 1-4 Parent Conference – Days 1-4 Submit Case to Code Office – Day 5

C16 **Parent Conference INCITING OR PARTICIPATING** Counseling/SSW Referral IN MASS DISTURBANCE Restorative Behavior Agreement Check In/Check Out Staff are required to complete an 5 Days OSS Undesirable Incident Report (Form 63), report to the DPSCD Public Safety Department, and conduct a Threat OR Assessment. The Principal may at their discretion refer the student to Hearing Office and Counseling/SSW Referral Incident- Day Zero Investigation - Days 1-4 Parent Conference - Days 1-4 Submit Case to Code Office - Day 5 C17 **Parent Conference** Parent Conference **Parent Conference USE OR POSSESSION OF** Small Impromptu **Restorative Circle Restorative Circle** ALCOHOL Conference **Restorative Behavior** Restorative Behavior Agreement **Restorative Behavior** Agreement Check In/Check Out School officials are required to report Agreement Check In/Check Out incidents to the DPSCD Public Safety Counseling / SSW Referral Department and complete an Check In/Check Out Counseling / SSW Referral 3-5 Days OSS Undesirable Incident Report (Form 63) Counseling / SSW Referral 2-3 Days OSS School staff are required to refer 1-2 Days OSS students to the appropriate Behavioral Mental Health Provider/School Counselor/School Social Worker/Substance Abuse Counseling and notify parent/guardian. C18 Parent Conference Parent Conference **Parent Conference USE OR POSSESSION OF** Small Impromptu **Restorative Circle Restorative Circle INHALANTS** Conference **Restorative Behavior** Restorative Behavior Agreement **Restorative Behavior** Agreement Check In/Check Out School officials are required to report Agreement Check In/Check Out Counseling / SSW Referral incidents to the DPSCD Public Safety Check In/Check Out Counseling / SSW Referral Department and complete an 3-5 Days OSS Undesirable Incident Report (Form 63) Counseling / SSW Referral 2-3 Days OSS 1-2 Days OSS School staff are required to refer students to the appropriate Behavioral Mental Health Provider/School Counselor/School Social Worker/Substance Abuse Counseling and notify parent/guardian C19 **Parent Conference Parent Conference** Parent Conference **USE OR POSSESSION OF** Small Impromptu **Restorative Circle Restorative Circle TOBACCO AND HOOKAH** Conference **Restorative Behavior** Restorative Behavior Agreement **PRODUCTS Restorative Behavior** Agreement Check In/Check Out Agreement Check In/Check Out Counseling / SSW Referral School officials are required to report Check In/Check Out Counseling / SSW Referral 3-5 Days OSS incidents to the DPSCD Public Safety and Counseling / SSW Referral complete an Undesirable Incident 2-3 Days OSS Report (Form 63) 1-2 Days OSS School staff are required to refer students to the appropriate Behavioral Mental Health Provider/School Counselor/School Social Worker/Substance Abuse Counseling/SSW **C20** Parent Conference Counseling/SSW 10 Days OSS Counseling/SSW Referral UNINTENTIONAL PHYSICAL Referral to Hearing Office **Restorative Circle** Referral **Parent Conference** CONTACT W/ SCHOOL STAFF Parent Conference Counseling/SSW Referral Counseling/SSW • **Restorative Circle** Referral **Restorative Circle**

Check In/Check Out

Restorative Behavior

1 Day ISS or 1 Day OSS

Agreement

CLT Referral

1-2 Days OSS

School officials are required to report

Undesirable Incident Report (Form 63)

incidents to DPSCD Public Safety

Department and complete an

Incident - Day Zero

Parent Conference – Days 1-4

Submit Case to Code Office - Day 5

D Infractions

Michigan law and community safety may require the removal of students who possess a dangerous weapon, commit arson, engage in criminal sexual conduct (Gun-Free Schools Act, 1994; MCL 380.1311), make bomb threats, or engage in verbal assault (MCL 380.1311a), and/or commit physical assault against another or at a school-related event (MCL 380.1310, 380.1311, 380.1311a), in compliance with MCL 380.1310(c)(d), as revised.

Seven Factors for Consideration

The District in accordance with state law, shall consider these seven (7) factors, including lesser interventions, for all suspensions and expulsions, except those involving students knowingly in possession of a gun with the intent to use. In all other cases, it is presumed that removals over ten (10) days are not justified unless the District can demonstrate that they considered the seven (7) factors, including lesser interventions.

The seven (7) factors are as follows:

- 1. Student's age.
- 2. Student's disciplinary history.
- 3. Whether the student is a student with a disability.
- 4. The seriousness of the violation or behavior committed by the student.
- 5. Whether the violation or behavior committed by the student threatened the safety of any student or staff member.
- 6. Whether restorative practices will be used to address the violation or behavior committed by the student.
- 7. Whether a lesser intervention would properly address the violation or behavior committed by the student.

In exercising discretion with regard to suspension of more than ten (10) days or an expulsion, there is a rebuttable presumption that the suspension or expulsion is not justified unless the District can demonstrate that the seven (7) factors were considered. For a suspension of ten (10) or fewer days, there is no rebuttable presumption; but the District shall consider each of the factors.

This section does not apply to a student being expelled under MCL 380.1311(2) for possessing a firearm in a weapon-free school zone.

In considering a student's suspension or expulsion, the District shall consider using restorative practices as an alternative or in addition to suspension or expulsion. If the District suspends or expels a student, in accordance with applicable law, the District shall consider using restorative practices in addition to suspension or expulsion. If the District decides not to suspend or expel a student, the District shall consider using restorative practices to address the issue. See the section entitled Restorative Practices for requirements and a description of the types of restorative practices which follows.

Note: Staff should consider student age and grade when assigning consequences. Avoid assigning any form of suspension to K – 2nd grade students. Use a variety of interventions and supports outlined within the Code of Conduct. When assigning consequences for 3rd – 5th grade students use interventions and supports outlined in the Code of Conduct and limit suspensions.

DO1 POSSESSION OF FIREARM, INCLUDES EXPLOSIVE DEVICES

According to Section 921 of the U.S. Code, firearm means any weapon (including a starter gun) which will or is designed to or may readily be converted to expel a projectile by the action of any explosive; the frame or receiver of any weapon described above; any firearm muffler or firearm silencer; any destructive device, which includes:

A. any explosive, incendiary, or poison gas;

- 1. Bomb;
- 2. Grenade;
- 3. Rocket having a propellant charge of more than four ounces;
- 4. Missile having an explosive or incendiary charge of more than one-quarter ounce;
- 5. Mine; or,
- 6. Similar (explosive) device.

B. any weapon which will, or which may be readily converted to, expel a projectile by the action of an explosive or other propellant, and which has any barrel with a bore of more than one-half inch in diameter.

C. any combination or parts either designed or intended for use in converting any device into any destructive device described in the two immediately preceding examples, from which a destructive device may be readily assembled.

Includes explosives and non-consumer fireworks such as homemade explosives, M-80s, M-100s, quarter sticks, cherry bombs, silver salutes, and other forbidden explosives.

D02 POSSESSION OF OTHER WEAPONS

- Dangerous weapons as defined by Michigan Revised School Code 380.1313(4)—dagger, dirk, stiletto, knives over 3 inches, pocketknife opened by a mechanical device, iron bar, or brass knuckles.
- Facsimile or replica guns (non-firearm gun or look-alike gun): any device or object imitating an actual firearm, including, and replica non–guns, and air-air soft guns firing nonmetallic projectiles. Includes "Orbeez" gun types that expel gel water pellets.
- Pneumatic guns as defined in Section 1 of the Michigan Firearms and Ammunition Act, MCL 123.1101: any implement, designed as a gun, which will expel a BB or pellet by spring, gas, or air, including a paintball gun that expels by pneumatic pressure plastic balls filled with paint for the purpose of marking the point of impact.
- Knives with a straight razor, box cutter with a razor, or any other small cutting or puncturing blade/weapon. (3 inches or less)
- Martial arts weapons, taser, stun gun, flare gun, nail gun, or bullets (ammunition).

USE OF ANY INSTRUMENT DESIGNED OR USED FOR INFLICTING BODILY HARM OR PHYSICAL DAMAGEThe use of an object in the commission of an aggressive act toward another person.

D04 PHYSICAL ASSAULT OF SCHOOL STAFF

Intentionally striking a DPSCD employee, volunteer, or contractor through force of violence, who is engaging in their lawful duties as employed by DPSCD. Includes the striking of staff who are providing student directives or requests, intervening in a fight or other disruptive activity, or administering de-escalation for student well-being/and the maintenance of a safe and orderly environment.

D05 PHYSICAL ASSAULT OF A STUDENT

Intentionally causing or attempting to cause physical harm to another student, through force or violence which could or does result in permanent injury or disfigurement. Includes causing substantial risk of death or causing permanent or serious disfigurement, loss of function of any part of the body, or impairment of the function of any part of the body.

D06 BOMB or SIMILAR THREATS

Communicating terroristic threats, including bomb threats, or committing terroristic acts directed at any student, employee, volunteer, contractor, physical plant, or property. Includes the conveyance of information to detonate explosive or incendiary devices/substances, and/or subject others to substantial risk of death or serious physical injury.

Acts of violence where the student specifically threatens the use of weapons to commit harm against any student(s)—and the student has access to carry out the threat or has demonstrated an overt act to indicate the sincerity of carrying out the threat—will be treated as a D06 violation. If the threat assessment results are low risk, refer to B01 Abusive Language or C15 Verbal Assault.

D07 ARSON

Willfully or maliciously burning, damaging, or destroying by fire or explosives, District buildings/property or the contents inside; generally, the intentional and malicious act of burning or setting fire to another's property. Includes attempting to set fire or aiding another in setting fire to another's property.

D08 DISTRIBUTION OR SALE OF DRUG PARAPHERNALIA, CONTROLLED SUBSTANCES, ALCOHOL, AND INHALANTS

Distributing, selling, or attempting to sell any drugs, controlled substances, alcohol, inhalants, vape pens, edibles, and laced food products. The combination of equipment, products, or materials, designed for packaging, sale, or use will be applied to determine distributive intent.

D09 CRIMINAL SEXUAL CONDUCT

This means a violation as set forth in the Michigan Penal Code. (MCL 750.520b to MCL 750.520g). It includes sexual penetration or sexual contact that occurs:

- with another person under 13 years of age;
- with another person at least 13 but less than 16 years of age under certain circumstances;
- when the actor knows the victim is mentally or physically incapable or is aided and abetted by 1 or more
 persons;
- when a weapon is used or an item fashioned into a weapon;
- when concealment or the element of surprise is used to overcome the victim; or
- when force is used to accomplish the sexual penetration or contact, or the actor causes personal injury, and force or coercion is used.

It is sexual contact with another person at least 13 but less than 16 years of age AND the other person is 5 or more years older.

Sexual contact is the intentional touching of the victim's intimate parts or the intentional touching of the clothing covering the immediate area of the victim's or actor's intimate parts if that intentional touching can reasonably be construed as being for the purpose of sexual arousal or gratification, done for a sexual purpose, or in a sexual manner for: (i) revenge, (ii) to inflict humiliation or (iii) out of anger. Intimate parts mean the primary genital area, groin, inner thigh, buttock, or breast of a human being.

In accordance with the Michigan Revised School Code (MCL 380.1311) if a student commits criminal sexual conduct in a school building or on school grounds, or pleads to, is convicted of, or is adjudicated for criminal sexual conduct against another student enrolled in the same school District, the school board, or the designee of the school board on behalf of the school board, shall expel the student from the school District permanently, subject to possible reinstatement.

Disciplinary Actions per Occurrence for D Infractions

Applicable to all K-12 students

D Infractions 1st Referral

D01 - POSSESSION OF FIREARM, EXPLOSIVE DEVICES

- Refer to Code Office for Mandatory Expulsion Hearing
- Suspension pending Expulsion Hearing
- Report to DPSCD Public Safety Department
- Complete Undesirable Incident Report (Form 63)
- MDR is required if the student is a student with a disability
- Counseling/SSW Referral
- 10 Days OSS

Incident – Day Zero
Investigation – Days 1-4
Parent Conference – Days 1-4
Submit Case to Code Office – Day 5

D03 – USE OF ANY INSTRUMENT DESIGNED OR USED FOR INFLICTING BODILY HARM OR PHYSICAL DAMAGE

- Refer to Code Office for Expulsion Hearing
- Suspension pending Expulsion Hearing
- Report the incident to DPSCD Public Safety Department
- Complete Undesirable Incident Report (Form 63)
- MDR is required if the student is a student with a disability
- Counseling / SSW Referral
- 10 Days OSS

Incident – Day Zero Investigation – Days 1-4 Parent Conference – Days 1-4 Submit Case to Code Office – Day 5

D05 – PHYSICAL ASSAULT OF A STUDENT

- Refer to Code Office for Expulsion Hearing
- Suspension pending Expulsion Hearing
- Report the incident to DPSCD Public Safety Department
- Complete Undesirable Incident Report (Form 63)
- MDR is required if the student is a student with a disability
- Counseling / SSW Referral
- 10 Days OSS

Incident – Day Zero
Investigation – Days 1-4
Parent Conference – Days 1-4
Submit Case to Code Office – Day 5

D02 - POSSESSION OF OTHER WEAPONS

- Refer to Code Office for Mandatory Expulsion Hearing
- Suspension pending Expulsion Hearing
- Report to DPSCD Public Safety Department
- Complete Undesirable Incident Report (Form 63)
- MDR is required if the student is a student with a disability
- Counseling/SSW Referral
- 10 Days OSS

Incident – Day Zero
Investigation – Days 1-4
Parent Conference – Days 1-4
Submit Case to Code Office – Day 5

D04 - PHYSICAL ASSAULT OF STAFF

- Refer to Code Office for Mandatory Expulsion Hearing
- Suspension pending Expulsion Hearing
- Report the incident to DPSCD Public Safety Department
- Complete Undesirable Incident Report (Form 63)
- MDR is required if the student is a student with a disability
- Counseling / SSW Referral
- 10 Days OSS

Incident – Day Zero
Investigation – Days 1-4
Parent Conference – Days 1-4
Submit Case to Code Office – Day 5

D06 - Bomb or Similar Threats

- School staff MUST conduct a Threat Assessment for threats of violence
- Refer to Code Office for Expulsion Hearing
- Suspension pending Expulsion Hearing
- Report the incident to DPSCD Public Safety Department
- Complete Undesirable Incident Report (Form 63)
- MDR is required if the student is a student with a disability
- Counseling / SSW Referral
- 10 Days OSS

Incident – Day Zero
Investigation – Days 1-4
Parent Conference – Days 1-4
Submit Case to Code Office – Day 5

D07 - Arson

- Refer to Code Office for Mandatory Expulsion Hearing
- Suspension pending Expulsion Hearing
- Report the incident to DPSCD Public Safety Department
- Complete Undesirable Incident Report (Form 63)
- Complete Theft & Damage Report (Form 446)
- MDR is required if the student is a student with a disability
- Counseling / SSW Referral
- 10 Days OSS

Incident – Day Zero
Investigation – Days 1-4
Parent Conference – Days 1-4
Submit Case to Code Office – Day 5

D08 – DISTRIBUTION OR SALE OF DRUG PARAPHERNALIA, CONTROLLED SUBSTANCES, ALCOHOL, AND INHALANTS

- Refer to Code Office for Expulsion Hearing
- Suspension pending Expulsion Hearing
- Report the incident to DPSCD Public Safety Department
- Complete Undesirable Incident Report (Form 63)
- MDR is required if the student is a student with a disability
- Counseling / SSW Referral
- 10 Days OSS

Incident – Day Zero
Investigation – Days 1-4
Parent Conference – Days 1-4
Submit Case to Code Office – Day 5

D09- CRIMINAL SEXUAL CONDUCT

- Immediately contact the DPSCD Public Safety Department and the parents/guardians of students involved
- Immediately contact the Civil Rights & Compliance Department and report the incident to the Title IX Coordinator
- Supportive Measures must be put in place for accused students and any impacted students
- Conduct a Threat Assessment emergency removal may be necessary
- Counseling/SSW Referral

DO NOT PROCEED WITH ANY OTHER STEPS UNTIL DIRECTED BY THE CIVIL RIGHTS & COMPLIANCE DEPARTMENT

Due Process Rights

The Board of Education recognizes the importance of safeguarding a student's constitutional rights, particularly when subject to the District's disciplinary procedures.

To better ensure appropriate due process is provided to a student, the Board establishes the following guidelines:

A. Students subject to short-term suspension:

Except when emergency removal is warranted, a student must be given oral or written notice of the charges against them and the opportunity to respond **prior to the implementation** of a suspension. When emergency removal has been implemented, notice and opportunity to respond shall occur as soon as reasonably possible. Before deciding to institute a short-term suspension, the Principal or other designated administrator shall provide the student with an opportunity to be heard and shall be responsible for making the suspension decision. An appeal of the short-term suspension may be addressed to the Code of Conduct Office (Code Office). The Principal's decision will not be delayed during this process.

B. Students subject to long-term suspension and expulsion:

A student and their parent or guardian must be given written notice of the intention to suspend or expel and the reasons. In the case of expulsion, a student and their parent or guardian must be given the opportunity to appear before the Superintendent or their designee, to address charges. The student and/or their guardian must also be provided a brief description of the student's rights and of the hearing procedure. The Board designates the Superintendent or designee as its representative at any hearings regarding the appeal of a long-term suspension. The Board shall act on any appeal received within fifteen (15) calendar days of notice, which must be submitted in writing, to an expulsion, to a request for reinstatement, or to a request for admission after being permanently expelled from another District.

Policy 5611 - Due Process

School Level Conferences, Hearings and Expulsion Review

Any disciplinary action that may result in a student being referred for placement in an alternative program or expelled, must begin with a school-level conference at the school within three (3) school days of the date of the infraction for grades K-5 and within five (5) school days of the date of the infraction for grades 6-12.

Parent/guardian (or authorized designee) and student are expected to attend all school-level conferences and hearings. The school administrator or designee must hold a school-level hearing even though a parent/guardian (or authorized designee) is unable to or chooses not to attend. The school administrator must document all attempts to reach the parent/guardian. Parents may be represented by an advisor of their choice, who may or may not be an attorney. Parental authorization for an advisor to appear on behalf of the student must be on file in writing with the Principal at the time of or before the time of the school-level conference. Only the parent/guardian or the advisor may speak for the child at the hearing. The selected speaker will be determined before the school-level conference starts.

School administrators will have the ability to recommend to the Student Code of Conduct Office that a student be administratively transferred where appropriate. Such a request must demonstrate an evaluation/approach that through documented efforts and evidence, the school finds that a new school setting would be best. For example, the school looked at the impact of an overage student being in his current placement, the student's relations with peers demonstrate a need to change the setting, or the student's neighborhood school is no longer safe for that student for clearly documented reasons, etc.

IF THE SCHOOL ADMINISTRATOR OR DESIGNEE IS THE TARGET OF THE ALLEGED BEHAVIOR, ANOTHER ADMINISTRATOR WILL CONDUCT THE SCHOOL LEVEL CONFERENCE, ADVISE THE STUDENT OF THE CHARGES AND MAKE THE DISCIPLINARY DECISION.

At the school-level conference, the student and the parents must first be fully informed about the alleged breach in behavior and then be afforded the opportunity to present their side of the case. At the beginning of the school-level conference, students and parents should be given a copy of the Rights of Students and Parents in Disciplinary Hearings. (See *Appendix B*) If allegations of unacceptable behavior are substantiated, the school administrator or designee will determine the disciplinary action to administer.

At the conclusion of the school-level conference, the administrator or designee will inform the parent and student of the charge and the disciplinary action to be taken.

The Expulsion Review Panel will review cases for students recommended for expulsion for the purpose of referring the case back to the Principal, assigning to an alternative education program or referring the case for an Expulsion Hearing.

Expulsion Hearings are conducted by the Hearing Official as a designee for the Superintendent. Parent/guardian (or authorized designee) and student must attend. Once the Code Office receives the case, deems it appropriate for review, and notifies the parent by phone/ and writing, an Expulsion Hearing will be scheduled within ten (10) days of the inappropriate incident. The Code Office will document all attempts to reach the parent/guardian and the student will remain out of school until the hearing is attended. Parents may be represented by an advisor of their choice, who may or may not be an attorney. Parental authorization for an advisor to appear on behalf of the student must be on file in writing at the Code Office at or before the time of the hearing. Only the parent/guardian or the advisor may speak for the student unless a selected speaker is designated.

At the hearing, the students and parents/guardians are fully informed of the charges and recommendations of the Expulsion Review Panel. The student is afforded the opportunity to address the allegations and present their side. At the conclusion of the hearing, the Hearing Official will advise the Superintendent or their designee of their decision. The adoption or rejection of the Hearing Official's recommendation for discipline by the Superintendent or their designee is final.

Permanent Expulsion

(MCL 380.1311)

Michigan law requires the permanent expulsion of a student, subject to possible future reinstatement, for certain acts. These include possession of a dangerous weapon, commission of arson or criminal sexual conduct in a school building or on school grounds or pleads to, is convicted of, or is adjudicated for criminal sexual conduct against another student enrolled in the same school District; and, for students' grade 6 and above, commission of physical assault at school against an employee, volunteer, or contractor.

The District is not required to expel for possession of a dangerous weapon if the student can establish in a clear and convincing manner at least one of the following:

- 1. The object or instrument possessed by the student was not possessed for use as a weapon, or for direct or indirect delivery to another person for use as a weapon.
- 2. The weapon was not knowingly possessed by the student.
- 3. The student did not know or have reason to know that the object or instrument possessed by the student constituted a dangerous weapon.
- 4. The weapon was possessed by the student at the suggestion, request, or direction of, or with the express permission of, school or police authorities.

There is a rebuttable presumption that expulsion for possession of a dangerous weapon is not justified if both the following are met:

- 1. The District determines in writing that at least one (1) of the factors listed above (1-4) has been established in a clear and convincing manner, and;
- 2. The student has no history of suspension or expulsion.

Reinstatement After Permanent Expulsion

A student who is permanently expelled must attend a reinstatement hearing with the Board of Education in order to return to DPSCD.

A petition requesting reinstatement must be completed by the student/parent/guardian and sent to the Office of the Board of Education. The petition and any supporting information will be reviewed by the Board of Education's Reinstatement Review Panel (the "Panel"). The student, parent and/or guardian will have an opportunity to appear and address the Panel.

The Panel may recommend unconditional reinstatement, conditional reinstatement, or may recommend against reinstatement. If the recommendation is for conditional reinstatement, it must include any recommended conditions. The recommendation shall be based on consideration of all the following factors:

- a. The extent to which reinstatement of the individual would create a risk of harm to pupils or school personnel.
- b. The extent to which reinstatement of the individual would create a risk of school District liability or individual liability for the school board or school District personnel.
- c. The age and maturity of the individual.
- d. The individual's school record before the incident that caused the expulsion.
- e. The individual's attitude concerning the incident that caused the expulsion.
- f. The individual's behavior since the expulsion and the prospects for remediation of the individual.
- g. If the petition was filed by a parent or legal guardian, the degree of cooperation and support that has been provided by the parent or legal guardian and that can be expected if the individual is reinstated, including, but not limited to, receptiveness toward possible conditions placed on the reinstatement.

The Panel's written recommendation must be submitted to the full Board for a decision at its next scheduled regular Board meeting. If reinstatement of the student is approved, the Board may require the student and/or their parent or guardian to agree to specific conditions before reinstating, including but not limited to, agreement to a behavior contract which could include an outside agency, participation in anger management program or other Counseling/SSW; periodic progress reviews, and specified, immediate consequences for failure to abide by a condition. The decision of the Board is final.

Readmission Guidelines and Hearings

A petition requesting readmission must be sent to the Code Office. The Readmission Review Panel shall review the petition for readmission when a student has been expelled for a non-permanent expulsion offense. The student must meet the criteria set by DPSCD before readmission will be considered and/or approved.

A Readmission Hearing will be held during which time the Hearing Official will hear from the student, review the petition and any additional information, review the evidence presented by the Readmission Review Panel, and make a decision. If the decision is to readmit the student, the student may be readmitted immediately provided the period of time for expulsion has expired. A contractual agreement and action plan regarding expected behavior, attendance, and academic progress and consequences for violations thereof may be required to be signed by the student, parent/guardian, and the Hearing Official, as a condition of readmission.

Readmission after Non-Permanent Expulsion

DPSCD has established conditions under which the student/parent/guardian or student eighteen (18) years or above may petition for readmission.

Appeals

Short-Term Suspension

A student may appeal a short-term suspension, those suspensions assigned by a Principal/school level administration. An appeal of the short-term suspension should be made in writing and addressed to the Code of Conduct Office.

Long-Term Suspension

A student may appeal a long-term suspension decision made by the Hearing Official. The Board designates the Superintendent or their designee as its representative at any hearings regarding the appeal of a long-term suspension.

Appeals can be for procedural violations or substantive violations. Appeals on procedural grounds (e.g. timelines, notice, etc.) should only be granted if the violation had a significant impact on the outcome. A minor delay beyond prescribed timelines if it had no impact, should not be grounds for appeal. An appeal on substantive grounds challenges the facts and decision. The appeal decision maker shall consider whether the student's rights were violated, including whether:

- All prescribed timelines were met.
- All notifications were timely and accurate.
- The student was afforded the right to be accompanied by a representative of their choosing.
- The original decision-maker was neutral.
- The facts presented at the hearing were fairly and fully considered.
- The school tried non-exclusionary alternatives to address the student's behavior before proposing exclusion and how well those alternatives were implemented.
- Other factors outside the student's control caused the behavior, including whether the student has or might have a disability or needs treatment for mental health concerns.
- New facts have been uncovered that are exculpatory.
- The reasons set forth by the school describing why alternative, non-exclusionary forms of discipline were not appropriate have changed in a positive way for the student; and
- Any other relevant factors or procedures

If any of the above factors are established on appeal, a documentation review may occur by the Deputy Superintendent of Schools. The request for appeal must be received by mail or email to the Deputy Superintendent of Schools' office within five (5) business days of the hearing.

Appeal decisions will be rendered within ten (10) business days after submission of the appeal. Students pending an appeal will not have a change in placement during the appeals process, e.g., if the student is in school, they would remain in school. Likewise, if the student is out of school, they should remain out of school.

Student Grievance

The Board recognizes that, as citizens, students have the right to request redress of grievances. Further, the Board believes that the inculcation of respect for lawful procedures is an important part of the educational process.

Accordingly, individual and group grievances should be provided for, and appropriate grievance procedures implemented.

A student grievance shall be any such that arises out of actions, procedures, and policies of this Board or its employees or the lack of such policy or procedure. The grievance will be responded to within ten (10) days of receipt.

The Board or its employees will hear the complaints and grievances of the students of the District provided that such complaints and grievances are made according to procedures established by the Superintendent.

An aggrieved student may request resolution of the grievance by initiating the following formal procedure:

A formal grievance is a complaint in writing from the student/parent to the Principal or designee. (In the event that the grievance is against the Principal, designee or other administrative staff, the written grievance goes directly to the Superintendent of schools or designee.) The written grievance should be filed within five (5) school days of the event to which it refers and should include the following, as appropriate:

- a) Statement of the allegation.
- b) Description of the alleged facts.
- c) Summary of steps they already have taken in attempt to resolve the problem.
- d) Name/s of the person/s thought to be responsible for the alleged events.
- e) Other facts considered to be pertinent to the case.
- f) Signature of the person initiating the grievance.

Additional Resources for Students and Families

If you need assistance beyond your school, the following offices and services of Detroit Public Schools Community District may be able to help. Follow the links below to be taken directly to each department's webpage or visit our main website at www.detroitk12.org.

- <u>DPSCD Public Safety Department</u>: Incident Report, threat assessment, outside referral, crisis management
- Office of Enrollment: Enrollment, neighborhood schools, exam high schools.
- Civil Rights and Compliance Department: Reporting student harassment and discrimination.
- Office of Exceptional Student Education: Services for students with disabilities.
- Office of Family and Community Engagement: Parent Teacher Associations, Parent Academy, and Alumni resources.
- Office of Homeless and Foster Care: Supports and services for youth who are homeless or in foster care.
- Office of Physical Health: Vaccination forms, health and safety information.
- Office of Student Affairs & Advocacy: Student attendance, discipline and support services.
- Office of Whole Child Support: Behavioral Health and Wellness support, School Counselors, 504 referrals

De-Escalation - Seclusion and Restraint

This policy is intended to provide the framework for organizational supports that result in effective interventions based on team-based leadership, data-based decision-making, continuous monitoring of student behavior, regular universal screening, and effective ongoing professional development. The District is committed to investing in prevention efforts and to teach, practice, and reinforce behaviors that result in positive academic and social outcomes for students.

In the event that staff members need to restrain and/or seclude students, it must be done in accordance with this policy, which is intended to:

- A. Promote the care, safety, welfare, and security of the school community and the dignity of each student;
- B. Encourage the use of proactive, effective, evidence and research-based strategies and best practices to reduce the occurrence of challenging behaviors, eliminate the use of seclusion and restraint, and increase meaningful instructional time for all students; and,
- C. Ensure that seclusion and restraint are used only as a last resort in an emergency situation and are subject to diligent assessment, monitoring, documentation, and reporting by trained personnel.

In furtherance of these objectives, the District will utilize Positive Behavioral Interventions and Supports (PBIS) to enhance academic and social behavior outcomes for all students. PBIS implemented by the District will include socially valued and measurable outcomes, empirically validated and practical practices, systems that efficiently and effectively support implementation of these practices, and continuous collection and use of data for decision-making.

Policy 5630.01 - Student Seclusion and Restraint

Appendix A – Glossary of Terms

Annoal	To recort to a superior administrative level to review the desiries of a lesser
Appeal	To resort to a superior administrative level to review the decision of a lesser administrative level.
Arson	To unlawfully and intentionally burn or attempt to burn, any real or personal property by fire or incendiary device.
Bullying	Conduct intended to place a person in fear of harm or cause substantial distress.
Breaking and Entering	Unlawful entry into a school building or other school structure.
Culture Leadership Team	Culture Leadership Team is a group of key school staff members and, sometimes
(CLT)	students or community members, dedicated to fostering and maintaining a positive
	culture and climate environment within a school. This team works collaboratively to
	shape and promote the school's values, norms, and expectations, aiming to enhance the
	overall learning experience and well-being of everyone in the school community.
Cyber Bullying	The use of electronic communication, networks, social media, or technology to
	intimidate, harass, bully, or threaten.
Due Process	Orderly procedures where a person is served notice, has an opportunity to be heard, and
	enforce/protect rights.
Expulsion	Non-Permanent Expulsion- A student is completely removed from all Michigan Public Schools for up to 180 school days. A student may submit a petition to the Code Office requesting consideration for return after the designated disciplinary period has been served.
	Permanent Expulsion- A student is completely removed from all Michigan Public Schools for up to 180 school days. A student may submit a petition to the Code Office for the Board of Education approval, requesting consideration for return after the designated disciplinary period has been served.
Expunge	To permanently remove from a student's discipline record.
False Alarms	The act of initiating a fire alarm or initiating a report warning of a fire or an impending
	bombing or other catastrophe without just cause.
Fighting	A physical altercation between one or more students that does not cause serious injury.
Free and Appropriate	Section 504, The Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA), and Michigan Revised
Public Education	Administrative Rules that all students with a disability, aged birth through 25 have a
	right to receive a free appropriate education. Free means that the educational and
	related services are provided without cost to the parent, except for those fees that are
	imposed on students without disabilities.
Functional Behavior	An assessment of the factors that affect a student's behavior typically includes a
Assessment	review of the environment and the student's needs.
Gang Activity	An ongoing organization, an association group of two or more individuals who use
	a common identifying name, sign, or symbol, have a high rate of interaction among
	themselves to the exclusion of others, and are frequently involved in anti-social,
0	delinquent or criminal activity.
Gang-Like Activity	Activity that is associated with or similar to gang activity.
Group Violence	Three or more persons inflicting physical harm upon a victim or victims.
Illegal Activity	Conduct that is in violation of state and/or federal law.
Incendiary Device	Any material/object which causes a fire or explosion.
Individualized Education	A specially designed instruction program developed by the IEP team, which describes
Program (IEP)	the student's eligibility, the student's present level of performance, annual goals and
	short-term objectives, specific educational and related services, amount of time spent in general education, the least restrictive environment, the reasons why the IEP is
	accepted or rejected, transition services, and the dates and frequency of services. The
	IEP shall be reviewed annually or more often as needed.
Intentional Contact	Implies that the action is purposeful and not accidental, with the initiator having a
c.itional contact	implies that the action is parposeral and not accidental, with the initiator flaving a

	specific objective or motive in mind.
Intimidation	Conduct intended to place a person in fear of harm less than bullying.
Insubordination	Refusal to obey the reasonable and lawful directions of authorized school personnel.
In-School Suspension	School-wide strategy for creating and sustaining a positive nurturing school climate
(ISS)	based on respectful relationships between teachers and students, teachers and
	teachers, students, and students.
Jurisdiction	Students on District physical property as well as when using district networks, accounts, telecommunications, electronic or virtual online services or equipment. It applies during school hours as well as, before and after school hours to include after-school events, school clubs, sporting events, district-sponsored sanction events, on school buses or in the other school vehicles, during school-sponsored field trips, when connected with school-related events and activities, and when students are en-route to and from school.
Loitering	The act of being in or about school District premises or in a specifically restricted area of
	a school District building at unauthorized times or without the specific authorization of school personnel.
Long Term Suspension	11- 59 days student suspension.
Out of School Suspension	A temporary removal from school and activities.
(OSS)	
Petition	A formal written request provided from the Code Office.
Physical Assault	Intentionally or attempting to cause physical harm to a student/adult through force or
Defined to I dentify Colf	violence.
Refusal to Identify Self	Refusing to show an identification card and/or give a correct name when requested to do so by school personnel.
Restitution	A restorative justice disciplinary action that allows students the opportunity to pay back
Nestitution	for their misbehavior. When determining an amount, the fair market value of the
	property will be used.
Sexual Harassment	Any type of unwelcome conduct determined by a reasonable person to be so severe, pervasive, and objectively offensive that it effectively denies a person equal access to the school's educational program or activity.
Short Term Suspension	Up to 10 days student suspension.
Supportive Measures	Individualized services are offered as appropriate to either or both the complainant and respondent involved in an alleged incident of Sexual Harassment prior to or during an investigation. Supportive measures may include Counseling/SSW, extensions of time or other course-related adjustments, modifications of class schedules, mutual restrictions on contact between the parties, changes in policies or procedures, and other similar accommodations. A Formal Title IX Complaint does not need to be filed for appropriate Supportive Measures to be implemented.
Tardy	Arriving in school or class after a specified start time without an excuse or pass as outlined in the District's attendance policy.
Threat Assessment	A series of questions, that is used with the student who made the threat, which results in
Title IV Consult	the decision to determine the credibility level of the threat.
Title IX Coordinator	The Title IX Coordinator oversees the Civil Rights & Compliance Department (CRC) and is responsible for coordinating the District's response to complaints of sex discrimination.
Trespassing	To enter or remain on school District premises without authorization and with no lawful
i i copassilig	purpose for entry.
Terroristic Acts	To threaten or cause violence to any person or property with intent to cause a reaction
	of any type by an official institution or agency authorized to deal with emergencies;
	prevent or interrupt the occupation or use of an area, building, or room or to cause
	interruption of public communication, water, gas, or power supply.
Truancy	Students who have missed at least 10% of the school year with unexcused absences are
	considered chronically absent/truant. (Not including excused absences and
	suspensions).
Unintentional Contact	A physical contact that is not planned or intended by the person initiating it.

Appendix B - Due Process Rights of Students and Parents in Disciplinary Cases

- 1. Students will be afforded due process with regard to disciplinary hearings. Due process will be less or more formal based on the exclusion being considered.
- 2. School officials will inform the student of the charges against them, including the basis (evidence) for such charges.
- 3. A student is entitled to receive make-up work for missed assignments that occurred because of suspension.
- 4. Students are entitled to take required examinations when an incident occurs that requires disciplinary action. Parents must contact the Principal to make arrangements for testing.
- 5. When a student is suspended, a disciplinary hearing will be held at the school before the suspension begins. A re-entry hearing may also be held.
- 6. If the parent/guardian cancels the appointment, the school Principal must reschedule the hearing date one time.
- 7. Parents/guardians may be represented by an advisor of their choice.
- 8. While parents/guardians and advisors do not have the right to question witnesses, they may request for school officials to present questions, on their behalf, to witnesses.
- 9. At the disciplinary hearing, the student will be afforded the opportunity to address the alleged behavior or charges presenting their side.
- 10. If the charges are substantiated at the school-level hearing, the parent/guardian has the right to appeal the charges for a suspension to the Student Code of Conduct Office consistent with Board Policy 5611 Due Process.
- 11. A parent/guardian or student may not appeal a decision of the Principal to suspend a student pending an Expulsion Review.
- 12. Students have a right to have hearings conducted in a timely manner. Unreasonable delays or multiple postponements in scheduling hearings will not be permitted.
- 13. Parents may petition for readmission after expulsion.
- 14. If a student with a disability is suspended beyond the initial total of ten (10) days, the school must follow procedures for Students with Disabilities and determine if the behavior is a manifestation of the student's disability.
- 15. The Code of Conduct Office may expunge a student's disciplinary infractions determined to be unsubstantiated (e.g., resulting from a due process violation, based on insufficient evidence, or the student was not guilty of the infraction) that has been placed on the District's database.
- 16. If a student believes any student rights set forth in the Code have been violated, the student, and/or parent or guardian, may submit a complaint in writing, see Student Grievance, to school administration and/or the Superintendent's Office.
- 17. Students have a right to review the evidence upon which the charges are based prior to an expulsion hearing.

Appendix C – Interrogations and Searches

Any search initiated or requested by the Detroit Public Schools Community District Public Safety Department, Detroit Police Department, or any other police department shall be governed by applicable legal standards.

Types of Searches:

1. Individualized Student Searches

School officials possess the authority to search individual students and their personal effects (including but not limited to clothing, backpacks, book bags, purses, vehicles that are parked on property owned or leased by the Board of Education, and similar items). The search will only be conducted if school officials have a reasonable suspicion that:

- A. there has been a criminal infraction or that there is a violation of a school policy or rule governing student behavior or discipline; AND,
- B. the individual who is the subject of the search participated in the infraction or violation; AND,
- C. evidence of the infraction or violation, or the proceeds therefrom, is in the possession of the student in the location to be searched.

Reasonable suspicion means that school officials have a good reason to think that a student might have something they're not allowed to have at school. They can see something, hear something, or someone told them about it. But just having a feeling or a guess is not enough to search a student.

If a school official or a safety officer believes that a student might have something they shouldn't, they can do a simple check like patting down pockets or looking inside bags and coats. If they need to do more than that, they will talk to the Office of General Counsel first.

When a school official needs to search a student, it should always be done by someone of the same gender as the student. If possible, there should be another person of the same gender as a witness too. The search will be done privately so that nobody else can see it. The search can be done by safety officers, school staff, or school officials. After the search, a report will be written and sent to the DPSCD Public Safety Department.

Locker and Desk Searches

Desks and lockers are the property of the Board of Education. Students are allowed to use this property; but at all times, desks and lockers remain under the control and ownership of the Board of Education. As a condition of the use of Board property, students assume full responsibility for the security of the locker and/or desk assigned to them.

The Board of Education reserves the right to conduct random searches of desks, lockers, and personal items (such as purses, book bags, coats, etc.). These searches may be conducted at any time for any reason, without notice, without student consent and without reasonable suspicion or a search warrant.

The following should be used as guidelines for the search of lockers and/or desks:

- D. Locker and desk searches are best performed when students are not present, such as prior to the opening of the school, after school or on the weekend.
- E. Locker and desk searches may include the use of trained dogs or other trained animals.
- F. Students should be alerted through their student handbooks or by other written materials that at any time their lockers and desks can be searched.
- G. Locker and desk searches may be conducted by school officials, with or without the assistance of DPSCD PD employees.

2. Metal Detector Screenings

A. Introduction

The purpose of a metal-detector scan is to prevent weapons and/or contraband from entering the schools. DPSCD reserves the right to use, but it is not limited to stationary walk-through metal detectors, hand-held "wand" metal detectors, portable walk-through metal detectors, and x-ray machines. All persons who enter District buildings used for academic instruction are subject to a metal detector scan. The Board has authorized several types of metal-detector screenings.

- 1. "As needed" Screenings: The Superintendent, their designee, or school official may also authorize metaldetector screenings on days on which special events such as athletic events or visits by dignitaries are held. As needed screenings may also be conducted to address safety concerns.
- 2. Daily Screenings: The Superintendent, their designee, or school officials may also authorize daily metal-detector screenings of students to ensure the safety and security of students, staff, volunteers, and visitors.

B. Public Notice

Each entrance of the District property shall have a sign stating the equivalent of the following statement: "Any person entering this building may be subject to search." However, the removal of the sign through vandalism or any other means shall not waive the District's ability to conduct any subject searches contained in this policy.

C. Scanning Procedures

- 1. All the doors that are not used for metal detector checks should be locked from the outside. They can still be opened from the inside in case of emergencies.
- 2. Before going through the metal detector, we need to put our metal things like keys and coins in separate containers. The people doing the checks might also ask us to take out things like coats, bags, and purses to scan with a handheld metal detector.
- 3. If the metal detector makes a loud sound, the people in charge might need to do a special check on the person or their bags. They will be very careful and respectful when doing this. After the check, they will scan again to make sure everything is okay.
- 4. Nobody can go inside the school until they pass through the metal detector without any problems, or until a more detailed check is done to find the cause of the alarm sound.
- 5. The metal detector checks will be done quickly to keep things moving smoothly.

D. Refusal to Cooperate:

If someone doesn't want to be checked by the school officials as allowed by this policy, they will talk to the Principal. If a student doesn't want to be checked, the school will call their parents. But nobody can go inside the school unless they agree to be scanned and searched. If someone refuses and stays outside, it will be counted as an unexcused absence.

Attachments to Policy: None

Legal References: Raina Mcburrows et. al v DPSCD

Case No. 2:09-cv-14863 - Consent Judgment MCLA §380.1308

Appendix D – Index of Reportable Incidents

Michigan school safety law requires that the following incidents be reported to a local law enforcement agency: (MCL 380.1308)

Armed Student or Hostage Robbery or Extortion

Suspected Armed Student Unauthorized Removal of Student

Weapons on School Property Threat of Suicide

Death or Homicide Suicide Attempt

Drive-By-Shooting Larceny (Theft)

Physical Assault (Fights) Intruders (Trespassing)

Bomb Threat Illegal Drug Use or Overdose

Drug Possession or Destruction of Property Explosion

Vandalism or Destruction of Property Arson

Minor in Possession of Alcohol Sexual Assault

Bus Incident or Accident

The chart below outlines the distinction between off-campus misconduct and DPSCD-related offenses that fall within our jurisdiction.

Student Code of Conduct/Code Hearing	Police Department/Judicial Hearing
Incident occurs within DPSCD jurisdiction, which includes to/from school, District events, field trips, etc.	Incident occurs outside of DPSCD jurisdiction (ie. Not on District property, not to/from school, not at District related event, field trip, etc.)
In the case of multiple simultaneous infractions, consequence is in alignment with the most severe infraction	Incident is a violation of federal, state or local laws
Code packet must be completed by the student's current school	In the case of multiple simultaneous violations of law, the relevant police department determines the number of charges
DPSCD Code Office holds hearing and determines relevant consequence if applicable. In the case of potential expulsion, Superintendent also approves	Relevant court holds hearing and determines relevant consequence if applicable.
If the student's current school disagrees with the Hearing Office outcome, they can submit an alternative AT request, which can include a virtual option.	Unless the consequence is juvenile detention or return to their school would cause severe disruption or safety concerns, student should be allowed to attend their regular school. If return to the regular school will cause great disruption to the majority of the population, the alternative AT request can be submitted, which can include a virtual option.

Appendix E – Title IX Definitions

Actual Knowledge - Notice to the school of an allegation of Sexual Harassment. A school has actual knowledge when it has notice that a person may have been victimized. Schools are put on notice when any person reports Sexual Harassment to a school employee or if school personnel witnesses Sexual Harassment.

Complainant – An individual who is alleged to be the victim of conduct that could constitute sexual harassment, including a student, parent/guardian of a student, employee of the District, or third party who submits a complaint alleging Sexual Harassment prohibited by Title IX.

Respondent – An individual who has been reported to be the perpetrator of conduct that could constitute sexual harassment.

Sexual Harassment – Conduct based on sex that meets one or more of the following descriptions:

- 1. A school employee conditioning an educational benefit or service on an individual's participation in unwelcome sexual conduct.
- 2. Any type of unwelcome conduct determined by a reasonable person to be so severe, pervasive, and objectively offensive that it effectively denies a person equal access to the school's educational program or activity.
- 3. "Sexual assault" as defined in 20 U.S.C. 1092(f)(6)(A)(v), "dating violence" as defined in 34 U.S.C. 12291(a)(10), "domestic violence" as defined in 34 U.S.C. 12291(a)(8), or "stalking" as defined in 34 U.S.C. 12291(a)(30).

Sexual Assault is defined as:

- Rape: The penetration, no matter how slight, of the vagina or anus with any body part or object, or oral penetration by a sex organ of another person, without the consent of the victim.
- <u>Fondling:</u> The touching of the private body parts of another person for the purpose of sexual gratification, without the consent of the victim, including instances where the victim is incapable of giving consent because of their age or their temporary or permanent mental incapacity.
- <u>Incest:</u> Non-forcible sexual intercourse between persons who are related to each other within the degrees wherein marriage is prohibited by law.
- Statutory Rape: non-forcible sexual intercourse with a person who is under the statutory age of consent.

Stalking - Engaging in a course of conduct directed at a specific person that would cause a reasonable person to:

- 1. fear for the person's safety or the safety of others; or
- 2. suffers substantial emotional distress.

For the purpose of this definition:

- a. Course of conduct means two or more acts, including but not limited to, acts in which the stalker directly, indirectly, or through third parties, by any action, method, device, or means, follows, monitors, observes, surveils, threatens, or communicates to or about a person, or interferes with a person's property.
- b. Reasonable person means a reasonable person under similar circumstances and with similar identities to the victim.
- c. Substantial emotional distress means significant mental suffering or anguish that may but does not necessarily, require medical or other professional treatment or Counseling/SSW.

Dating Violence - Violence committed by a person who is or has been in a social relationship of a romantic or intimate nature with the victim.

For the purpose of this definition:

a. Dating violence includes but is not limited to sexual or physical abuse or the threat of such abuse.

b. Dating violence does not include acts covered under the definition of domestic violence.

Domestic Violence - A felony or misdemeanor crime of violence committed:

- 1. By a current or former spouse or intimate partner of the victim;
- 2. By a person with whom the victim shares a child in common;
- 3. By a person who is cohabitating with or has cohabitated with the victim as a spouse or intimate partner;
- 4. By a person similarly situated to a spouse of the victim under the domestic or family violence laws of the jurisdiction in which the crime of violence occurred; or,
- 5. By any other person against an adult or youth victim who is protected from that person's act under the domestic or family violence laws of the jurisdiction in which the crime of violence occurred.

Civil Rights & Compliance Department (CRC) – The department within the District is charged with overseeing all Title IX investigations.

Formal Title IX Complaint – A complaint filed with the Title IX Coordinator or the Civil Rights & Compliance Department that triggers the below grievance procedures.

Complaint Submission Date – The date on which a Formal Title IX Complaint was submitted to the Title IX Coordinator or the Civil Rights & Compliance Department.

Supportive Measures – Individualized services offered as appropriate to either or both the complainant and respondent involved in an alleged incident of Sexual Harassment prior to or during an investigation. Supportive measures may include Counseling/SSW, extensions of time or other course-related adjustments, modifications of class schedules, mutual restrictions on contact between the parties, changes in policies or procedures, and other similar accommodations. A Formal Title IX Complaint does not need to be filed for appropriate Supportive Measures to be implemented.

Preponderance of the Evidence – The evidence standard used to determine whether an alleged incident of Sexual Harassment occurred. The standard weighs the evidence to determine if an alleged incident more likely than not occurred.

(Retain this copy for your records)

PARENT AND STUDENT STATEMENT OF UNDERSTANDING, RECEIPT, AND REVIEW OF STUDENTS' RIGHTS, RESPONSIBILITIES, AND CODE OF CONDUCT

TO THE PRINCIPAL:

We, the undersigned, join the Detroit Public Schools Community District in an effort to "successfully create a clean, safe, and healthy environment to promote positive student behavior and achievement."

Therefore, we, the undersigned, agree to:

FOR THE STUDENT

- Read and follow the rules and regulations outlined in the Student Code of Conduct
- Do not engage in bullying and report bullying when I see it.
- Do not bring a weapon or anything that may endanger others to school or to a school event.
- Notify school staff if I see a weapon or dangerous situation in school or at a school event.
- Seek school staff assistance when conflicts arise involving me or my peers.

STUDENT'S SIGNATURE	DATE
SCHOOL	
FOR THE PARENT/GUARDIAN	
 Read the rules and regulations outlined in the Student Code Teach and encourage my children to follow school guidelines Respect school staff and adhere to school policies and proce Notify school officials when conflicts arise involving students. 	
PARENT/GUARDIAN'S SIGNATURE	DATE

We agree to this commitment and expect that the School's Principal will:

- Respect the rights of students and parents/guardians and enforce the Student Code of Conduct
- Promote conflict resolution
- Listen and act on parent and student concerns where appropriate to develop a safe and healthy school environment.

(Return this copy to your child's school)

PARENT AND STUDENT STATEMENT OF UNDERSTANDING, RECEIPT AND REVIEW OF STUDENTS' RIGHTS, RESPONSIBILITIES AND CODE OF CONDUCT

TO THE PRINCIPAL:

We,	the undersig	ned, join the Detr	oit Public S	chools (Community	District in	an effort to	successfully:	create a	clean,
safe,	and healthy	environment to	promote pos	sitive stu	udent beha	vior and a	chievement	."		

Therefore, we, the undersigned, agree to:

FOR THE STUDENT

- Read and follow the rules and regulations outlined in the Student Code of Conduct
- Do not engage in bullying and report bullying when I see it.
- Do not bring a weapon or anything that may endanger others to school or to a school event.
- · Notify school staff if I see a weapon or dangerous situation in school or at a school event.
- Seek school staff assistance when conflicts arise involving me or my peers.

STUDENT'S SIGNATURE	DATE
SCHOOL	

FOR THE PARENT/GUARDIAN

- Read the rules and regulations outlined in the Student Code of Conduct
- · Teach and encourage my children to follow school guidelines.
- Respect school staff and adhere to school policies and procedures.
- · Notify school officials when conflicts arise involving students.

PARENT/GUARDIAN'S SIGNATURE	DATE

We agree to this commitment and expect that the School's Principal will:

- Respect the rights of students and parents/guardians and enforce the Student Code of Conduct
- Promote conflict resolution
- Listen and act on parent and student concerns where appropriate to develop a safe and healthy school environment.

STAFF STATEMENT OF UNDERSTANDING, RECEIPT AND REVIEW OF STUDENTS' RIGHTS, RESPONSIBILITIES AND CODE OF CONDUCT

I, the undersigned, join the Detroit Public Schools Community District in an effort to "successfully create a clean, safe and healthy environment to promote positive student behavior and achievement."	
Therefore, I, the undersigned, agree to:	
 Read the rules and regulations outlined in the Student Code of Conduct Respect the rights of students and parents/guardians and enforce the St Do not engage in bullying and report bullying when I see it. Teach and encourage my students to follow school guidelines. Promote conflict resolution. Listen and act on parent and student concerns where appropriate to deschool environment. Abide by all Board Policies, including Policy 3139.01 - Work Rules and Policy 3210 - Standards of Ethical Conduct, which provide that Staff me expose a student to unnecessary embarrassment or disparagement" or language." 	velop a safe and healthy Staff Corrective Discipline and embers should not, "intentionally
STAFF MEMBER'S SIGNATURE	DATE
SCHOOL_	